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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 37th Annual General Meeting of the members of B C C FUBA INDIA LIMITED (“the company”) 
will be held on Wednesday, the 20th day of September 2023 at 11:30 A.M. through Video Conferencing (“VC”) in accordance 
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circulars to transact the following businesses: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS: -

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the Financial Year ended 31st 
March 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditor’s thereon.	

2.	 To appoint Anurag Gupta (DIN: 03629487), as Director, liable to retire by rotation.

	 “RESOLVED THAT Anurag Gupta (DIN: 03629487), who retires by rotation from the Board of Directors pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Company’s Articles of Association be and is hereby reappointed 
as a Director of the Company.”

3.	 Appointment of Statutory Auditor under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 to be passed as Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 139 and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder, M/s Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co. Chartered Accountants (FRN 007895N) having their office at 2952-53/2, 
Sangtrashan, Paharaganj, New Delhi-110055, who have given their consent to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of 4 Financial 
Years from the 37th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 41st Annual General Meeting of the Company on 
such remuneration, fee and out of pocket expenses as may be determined and recommended by the Audit Committee in 
consultation with the Auditors and duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Board and/or Company Secretary of the Company be and is, hereby 
empowered and authorized to take such steps, in relation to the above and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
as may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for giving effect to this resolution and to inform the BSE and to file 
necessary E-Forms with Registrar of Companies.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.	 Approval of Remuneration of Mr. Abhinav Bhardwaj (DIN:06785065) Executive Director & CEO of the Company:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with provisions of Section 197, 198, Schedule V and other applicable provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the Company hereby accords to approve 
the remuneration of Mr. Abhinav Bhardwaj (DIN:06785065), Executive Director & CEO for period of three years on the 
terms and conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement attached hereto and forming part of this notice with a liberty 
to Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions of his remuneration so as the total remuneration payable 
to him shall not exceed the limits specified in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification 
or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force and as agreed between Board of Directors and Mr. Abhinav Bhardwaj.”

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything contained to the contrary in Companies Act, 2013, where in 
any financial year the Company has no profits or has inadequate profits, Mr. Abhinav Bhardwaj will be paid minimum 
remuneration as stated in Explanatory Statement or such remuneration as may be approved by the Board within the ceiling 
prescribed under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or any modification or re-enactment thereof at relevant time.” 

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company jointly or severally be and is hereby authorized to take such 
steps as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

For B C C Fuba India Limited
 Date: 24.08.2023 			    		   Abhinav Bhardwaj

Director
DIN: 06785065
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NOTES:

1.	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) has vide its General Circular dated 5th May 2020 read with Circulars dated 8th 
April, 2020, 13th April, 2020, 28th September, 2020, 13th January, 2021 and Circular issued on February 2022 dated 
30th May 2022 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”), has introduced Companies to convene their Annual General 
Meetings (AGM/ Meeting) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) without the physical 
presence of the Members at a common venue. Further the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) vide its circulars 
dated 12th May 2020 and 15th January 2021 (‘SEBI Circulars’) has also granted certain relaxations. In compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. In compliance with 
the said requirements of the MCA Circulars, electronic copy of the Notice along with requisite documents and the Annual 
Report for the financial year ended 31st March 2023 (Collectively referred to as Notice) have been sent only to those 
members whose e- mail ids are registered with the Company or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent or the Depository 
Participants(s) through electronic means. The Notice shall also be available on the Company’s website www.bccfuba.com.

2.	 Registration of e-mail address permanently with Company/ Registrar and Transfer Agent: 

	 The members who have not yet registered their e- mail ids with the Company or if there is any change in the email-id 
already registered with the company may register/change it through our Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) viz. Link 
Intime India Pvt. Ltd. (LIIPL) by accessing the following link click on the mentioned link https://linkintime.co.in/emailreg/
email_register.html for registering their e- mail ids. The Company shall send the Notice to such members whose e-mail ids 
get registered within the aforesaid time enabling them to participate in the meeting and cast their votes. 

3.	 Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular dated December 28, 2022 
vide circular no. 10/2022 SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 05 January, 2023, and SEBI Circular 
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2022-23 
is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/
Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2022-23 will also be available on the Company’s 
website www.bccfuba.com and website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at http://www.bseindia.com. Further as 
per the aforesaid Circulars, the businesses set out in the Notice will be transacted by the members only through remote 
e-voting or through the e-voting system provided during the meeting while participating through VC facility.

4.	 Since, the AGM is being conducted through VC/ OAVM (without the physical presence of the members), the Proxy Form, 
Attendance Slip, Route Map and place of meeting are not required. However, corporate members are required to send to 
the Company’s email address delhi@bccfuba.com, a certified copy of the Board Resolution, pursuant to section 113 of 
the Companies Act 2013, authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Meeting through VC. 

5.	 Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 
103 of the Act.

6.	 In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of 
Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

7.	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, 14th September, 
2023 to Wednesday, 20th September, 2023 (both days inclusive). The book closure dates have been fixed in consultation 
with the Stock Exchanges.

8.	 Pursuant to Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and amendments thereto and applicable provisions of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, the Company is pleased to provide the facility to Members to exercise their right on all resolutions 
proposed to be passed at AGM by way of electronic means. The facility of e-voting through the same portal provided by 
LIIPL will be available during the Meeting through VC also to those Members who do not cast their votes by remote e-voting 
prior to the Meeting. Members, who cast their votes by remote e-voting, may attend the Meeting through VC but will not be 
entitled to cast their votes once again.

9.	 Voting rights of the members for voting through remote e-voting or e-voting system provide in the Meeting itself as on the 
cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, 13th September, 2023. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in 
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the Register of Beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date shall only be entitled to avail the 
facility of remote evoting or e- voting system provide in the Meeting. The members may cast their votes on electronic voting 
system from places other than the venue of the meeting (remote e-voting). The remote e-voting period will commence 
at 9:00 A.M. on Sunday, 17th September 2023 and will end at 5.00 P.M. on Tuesday, 19th September 2023. In addition, 
the facility for voting through e voting system shall also be made available at the VC and the Members attending the AGM 
by VC who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be eligible to vote at the AGM. The Company has appointed 
Mr. Naresh Samkaria, Partner of Samkaria & Associates, Practicing Chartered Accountant, to act as the Scrutinizer, to 
scrutinize the entire e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The Members desiring to vote through remote 
e-voting are requested to refer to the detailed procedure given hereinafter.

10.	 In accordance with the aforementioned MCA Circulars, the Company has appointed Link Intime India Private Limited (LIIPL) 
for providing the VC facility to the members for participating in the Meeting. The members are requested to follow the 
following instructions in order to participate in the Meeting through VC mechanism:

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ members who have 
not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under: 

1.	 On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”

2.	 Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered 
email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on ‘Submit’. 

3.	 After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ Against” for 
voting. 

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares (which 
represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against’.

5.	 After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on “Save”. 
A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, 
click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote. 

6.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently.

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to 
vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to 
the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, 
they will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband for 
better experience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting via 
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It is therefore recommended to use 
stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to instameet@
linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.
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InstaMeet Support Desk

Link Intime India Private Limited

Process and manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

1.	 Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in

•	 Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: - 

A.	 Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16-digit Demat Account No. or Folio No

•	 Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary 
ID

•	 Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID 
followed by 8 Digit Client ID

• 	 Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with 
the Company 

B.	 PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their PAN with 
the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable. 

C.	 Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number. 

D.	 Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company. 

•	 Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the meeting).

Please refer the instructions (annexure) for the software requirements and kindly ensure to install the same on the device 
which would be used to attend the meeting. Please read the instructions carefully and participate in the meeting. You may also 
call upon the InstaMeet Support Desk for any support on the dedicated number provided to you in the instruction/ InstaMEET 
website.

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

1.	 Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 3 days in advance with the company 
on the specific email id created for the general meeting. 

2.	 Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the client. 

3.	 Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting.

4.	 Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting.

5.	 Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video mode and audio 
of your device.

Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name and serial 
number for speaking. 

Annexure 

Guidelines to attend the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.: InstaMEET

For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. Insta MEET, shareholders/ members who 
are registered as speakers for the event are requested to download and install the Webex application in advance by following 
the instructions as under:

a)	 Please download and install the Webex application by clicking on the link https://www.webex.com/downloads.html/ 



BCC FUBA INDIA LIMITED

7



BCC FUBA INDIA LIMITED

8

or 

Step 1 Enter your First Name, Last Name and Email ID and click on Join Now. 
 1 (A) If you have already installed the Webex application on your device, join the meeting by clicking on Join Now 
 1 (B) If Webex application is not installed, a new page will appear giving you an option to either Add Webex to chrome 

or Run a temporary application. 
Click on Run a temporary application, an exe file will be downloaded. Click on this exe file to run the application 
and join the meeting by clicking on Join Now 

b)	 If you do not want to download and install the Webex application, you may join the meeting by following the process 
mentioned as under: 
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12.	 PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING

	 Event No 230366

Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders:

1.	 The voting period begins Sunday, 17th September, 2023 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Tuesday, 19th September, 2023 at 
5:00 P.M. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on the cut-off date (record date) 13TH September, 2023, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting 
module shall be disabled by Link Intime India Private Limited (LIIPL) for voting thereafter.

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode can register 
directly with the depository or will have the option of accessing various ESP portals directly from their demat accounts.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

1.	 Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL

1.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz... https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal 
computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”” 
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. 
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on 
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name 
or e-Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed to “InstaVote” website for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

2.	 If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:  https://eservices.nsdl.
com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click 
on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will 
have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period.

2.	 Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL

1.	 Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, can login through their user id and password. Option will be 
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi 
/ Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System 
Myeasi.

2.	 After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of 
e-Voting service provider i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/
Registration/EasiRegistration. 

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat account number and PAN No. from 
a link i.e. www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered 
Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for 
the respective ESP i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

3.	 Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat mode) login through their depository participants 
You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered 
with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, 



BCC FUBA INDIA LIMITED

10

you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to 
“InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form/ Non-Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode is given below:

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under:

1.	 Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

2.	 Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: - 

A.	 User ID: 

	 Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company. 
Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 
ID; Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

B. 	 PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable. 

C. 	 DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP / Company - in DD/
MM/YYYY format) 

D. 	 Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your DP/Company. 

	 *Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide their Folio number in 
‘D’ above

*Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above

• 	 Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special Character 
(@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter). 

• 	 Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated). 

3.	 Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 

4.	 Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’. 

Cast your vote electronically:

1.	 After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon. 

2.	 E-voting page will appear. 

3.	 Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view 
the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link). 

4.	 After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish 
to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote. 

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the e-voting system 
of LIIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are 
also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate 
Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at enotices@
linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any technical issues related 
to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the password: 

If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both 
then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on the e-Voting website of Link Intime: https://instavote.
linkintime.co.in

o	 Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’ 

o	 Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on “SUBMIT”.

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. Shareholders 
can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, 
PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above. The password should contain minimum 8 
characters, at least one special character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is Event No + Folio Number 
registered with the Company

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the password: 

Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option 
available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants website.

•	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential. 

•	 For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.

•	 During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the resolution(s) for 
a particular “Event”.

InstaVote Support Desk
Link Intime India Private Limited			   For B C C Fuba India Limited
Date: 24.08.2023	 Abhinav Bhardwaj

Director
DIN: 06785065
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ITEM NO.2 DETAIL OF DIRECTOR

PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 
2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2 ISSUED BY ICSI, INFORMATION ABOUT THE DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE 
APPOINTED/ REAPPOINTED IS FURNISHED BELOW:

Name Anurag Gupta
DIN 03629487
Date of Birth 13.04.1975
Date of Appointment in the Board 31.07.2019
Qualification B.Tech, MBA
Nature of Expertise in specific functional areas Experience in manufacturing, trading and marketing of 

Heat Exchanger
Shareholding in the Company including
shareholding as a beneficial owner

NIL

List of Directorship held in other companies 5
Names of Listed Entities in which the person holds 
membership of Committees of the Board

0

Names of Listed Entities from which the person has resigned 
in the past three years

0

Terms and conditions of appointment/ r e-appointment Re-appointment as a Non-Executive Director (Non-
Independent Director)

Relationship between Directors Inter-se NA
In case of Independent Director: The skills and capabilities 
required for the role and the
manner in which the proposed person meets such 
requirements

NA
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND/OR REGULATION 36(3) OF 
THE SEBI(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATION, 2015.

ITEM NO. 4:

On the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting 
held on the 24th August, 2023, has approved the remuneration of Mr. Abhinav Bhardwaj (DIN:06785065), Executive Director 
& CEO for period of three years with a liberty to Nomination amnd Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors to alter 
and vary the terms and conditions of his remuneration so as the total remuneration payable to him shall not exceed the limits 
specified in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time 
being in force and as agreed between Board of Directors and Mr. Abhinav Bhardwaj.”

1 Nature of Industry The Company is engaged in the Business of Printed Circuit Board . 
2 Date or expected date of commencement 

of Commercial Production
02.09.1985

3  In case of new companies, expected date 
of commencement of activities as per 
project approved by financial institutions 
appearing in the prospectus

NA

4 Financial performance based on given 
indicators

Details of Financial Performance of the Company are provided in Annual 
Report 2023 which accompanies this notice

5 Foreign investments or collaborations, if 
any

NA

6 Background details of the Appointee He is Qualified Chartered Accountant and has a diverse experience in the 
area of Strategy, Management, and Marketing.

7 Past Remuneration of Appointee Rs. 15,30,000 for the Financial Year 2022-23
8 Recognition or awards of Appoin tee He has been associated with many renowned groups including KPMG India, 

Ernst & Young LLP, S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants.
9 Job profile and his suitability He is managerial Personnel of proven calibre and skill and is having wide 

ranging experience in Strategy, Management, and Marketing.
10 Remuneration proposed As per Item No 4 of this Notice
11 Comparative remuneration profile with 

respect to industry, size of the company, 
profile of the position and person (in case 
of expatriates the relevant details would 
be with respect to the country of his 
origin)

There are no set standards for remuneration in the industry. The executive 
remuneration in the industry has been increasing significantly in last few 
years. Having regard to the type of industry, trends in the industry, size of the 
Company, the responsibilities, academic background and capabilities, the 
Company believes that the remuneration proposed to be paid to Mr. Abhinav 
Bhardwaj as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer is appropriate. 
The Company has its own remuneration policy based on the role perceived 
and played by employees at top levels. Considering his rich experience, 
competence, and the growth and development of the Company under his 
leadership, the terms of his remuneration are considered fair and reasonable. 

12 Pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the company, or relation 
with the managerial personnel, if any

NA

13 Reasons of loss or inadequate profits Since the past few years, the industry is going to rough phase. However, 
the company is growing and making profits but the profits are still not 
adequate as the Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013.

14 Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement

The company has started reaping the benefits of operating leverage whereby 
higher revenue is resulting in significantly higher profits. 

15 Expected increase in productivity and 
profits in measurable terms

On the back of revenue growth, the company will see further expansion of 
profitability in 2023-24.
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 37th Annual Report and the audited Accounts of the Company for the financial 
year ended 31st March 2023.

A brief summary of the audited Standalone financial results of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, is as under:

(Figures in Rs. In 100)

S. No Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1. Revenue from operations 28,65,199.16 28,53,534.53
2. Other Income 32,076.26 17,492.86
3. Total Income 28,97,275.42 28,71,027.39
4. Less: Expenditure 26,52,696.68 27,81,929.73
5 Profit / Loss before exceptional items 2,44,578.74 89,097.66
3. Exceptional Items - -
4. Profit/(Loss) before tax 2,44,578.74 89,097.66
5. Tax Expense

 Current Tax
 Deferred Tax

35,825.74
(21,363.11)

-
-

6. Profit/(Loss) for the Year 2,30,116.11 89,097.65
7. Other Comprehensive income (5,097.53) (1,180.80)
8. Total Comprehensive income 2,25,018.58 87,916.86
7. Earnings per Share 1.47 0.57

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHT

The Company achieved revenue from operations of INR 28,65,199.16/- on standalone basis as compared to last year’s revenue 
INR 28,53,534.53/- (Figures are in hundred)

During the year under review the company has earned profits of INR 2,30,116.11/- (as compared to Previous year profit of INR 
89,097.66/-) (Figures are in hundred). The earnings per share increased to Rs. 1.47 as compared to Rs. 0.57 in last financial 
year. Thereby resulting in an increase of 157.89% since last year.

The financial health of the Company shows that our company is on the right track and continuingly making efforts to do great 
and mark its strong presence felt in the market, This would result in our creaping  maximum benefits simultaneously with the 
company on growth.

RESERVES

Your directors have not transferred any amount to the credit of the General Reserve of the Company for the year ended 31st 
March, 2023.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no significant material changes and commitments which have occurred between the end of financial year of the 
Company to which the financial statements relates and the date of this report which affects financial position of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Your Company is doing its best efforts to give high priority to energy conservation by opting for more power efficient replacements. 
Particulars of Energy Conservation / Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and out go as per Section 134(3)
(m) of Companies Act, 2013 are given as an Annexure-A to this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company recognizes that risk is an integral part of business and is committed to managing the risks in a proactive and 
efficient manner. Your Company periodically assesses risks in the internal and external environment.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

In terms of the provisions of Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the remuneration and other details is being annexed 
to this report as Annexure-B.

DIVIDEND

As Your Company incurred some huge losses in the past, the Company is trying to recover those losses. Our directors regret 
their inability to declare dividends to the Members.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore, there were no funds 
which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

ANNUAL RETURN

As required under Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return for the financial year ended on 31st March 2023 in Form MGT-
7 pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 is put on the Company’s website and can be accessed at www.bccfuba.com .

CODE OF CONDUCT AS PER SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015

The Board of Directors has laid down The Amended Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel 
as per Regulation 17(5) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 of the Company. 
Additionally, all Independent Directors of the company shall be bound by duties of Independent Directors as set out in Companies 
Act, 2013 to be read with SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

All Board Members, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of 
Conduct.

CODE OF CONDUCT AS PER SEBI (PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING) REGULATIONS, 2015

The Board of Directors has laid down the Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosures of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information as per Regulation 8(1) of SEBI (Prevention of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 & Code of Conduct to Regulate, 
Monitor and Report trading by the Designated Persons as per Regulation 9(1) of SEBI (Prevention of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015 at their meeting held on 8th March, 2021 with reference to Regulation 32 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the disclosure of Statement of Deviation(s) or Variation(s) as per the said regulation is not 
applicable to the Company, as company has not raised any fund by way of public issue, Right issue and/or Preferential issue of 
equity shares, during the year under review.

DIRECTORS

Your Company is managed and controlled by a Board comprising an optimum blend of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. 
The Chairman of the Board is a Non-Executive Independent Director. As on March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors comprised of 
One (1) Executive Director and Seven (7) Directors which are Non-executive Directors, out of which Three (3) are Independent 
Directors and (2) Two Women Director. Further in addition to the above-mentioned Directors as on March 31, 2023, the Company 
also had a Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and a Chief Financial Officer (CFO). The composition of the Board is in conformity with 
Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013. All the Directors possess requisite qualifications and experience in general corporate management, 
operations, technical expertise, strategy, governance, finance, banking and other allied fields which enable them to contribute 
effectively to the Company in their capacity as Directors of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any new appointments of Directors and Mr. Parmod Kumar Gupta had 
resigned from the directorship of the Company during the period under review.

The Independent Directors of your Company have given the certificate of independence to your Company stating that they meet 
the criteria of independence as mentioned under Section149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The policy on Director’s appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 
independence of Director, and also remuneration for Key Managerial Personnel and other employees is stated on website of the 
Company i.e. www.bccfuba.com.
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RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

Pursuant to Section 149(13) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors are not liable to retire by rotation. Further 
Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 stipulates that 2/3rd of the total number of directors of the public company should 
be liable to retire by rotation and out of such directors, 1/3rd should retire by rotation at every Annual General meeting of the 
Company. To meet the requirement of provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 Anurag Gupta (DIN: 03629487)
Director will be retiring by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
The Board recommends his re-appointment to the Board of Directors the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 CHANGES IN KMP

During the year under review, there is no change in the KMP.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the Share Capital of your company hasn’t changed. The Company has not issued any shares during 
the year ended March 31, 2023. As on 31st March 2023, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company was Rs. 20,00,00,000/- 
consisting of 2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. The Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 31st March 2023 was 
Rs. 15,31,00,500/- consisting of 1,53,10,050 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and during the year under report, your Company 
has not issued any shares under any employee stock options schemes, sweat equity shares or any equity shares with differential 
rights- as to dividend, voting or otherwise. Further, the Company has not bought back its own securities, during the year under 
report.

FUTURE PLANS OF RENOVATION/EXPANSION

Bearing in mind the burgeoning demand for products and marketing strength of “THE BRAND FUBA’ as well as the positive 
economy ahead, the Company is gearing itself to meet future demand growth. The Company is in the process of renovating 
its plant for maximum utilization of the manufacturing capacity of the plant and is working towards capacity expansion and 
technology upgradation by way of induction and installation of new machinery.

AUDITORS REPORT

The observations of the auditors are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further comments.

[A] STATUTORY AUDITOR

 M/s Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co. Chartered Accountants (FRN 007895N) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company by the members in 36th Annual General meeting for one year.

M/s Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co. Chartered Accountants (FRN 007895N) having their office at 2952-53/2, Sangtrashan, 
Paharaganj, New Delhi-110055, who have given their consent to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company are 
hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company who shall hold the office of the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
from the period commencing from 37th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 41th Annual General Meeting of the Company, 
subject to the approval of shareholders at 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

[B] INTERNAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provision of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 01.09.2022 
had appointed Vimal Jain & Associates as the Internal Auditor of the Company. The Internal Auditor submits a “Quarterly Report” 
to the Audit Committee for its review.

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. The scope 
and authority of the Internal Audit function is defined by the Audit Committee and delegated to Internal Auditor to maintain its 
objectivity and independence. The Internal Auditor reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board and to the 
Chairman/chairperson.

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the company, its compliance 
with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company and promptly informed the 
management on the lacking as and when required.

[C] SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 179 and 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and 
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Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s. Pankhuri Mathur & Associates, Company Secretaries, a firm of 
practicing company secretaries was appointed as Secretarial Auditor to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the 
financial year ended 2022-23.

Pankhuri Mathur, Secretarial Auditor has given the Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR-3 and the same has been annexed 
to the Board’s Report and marked as “Annexure-C”. The secretarial audit report does not contain any qualification, reservation, 
adverse remark or disclaimer and is self-explanatory.

The Secretarial audit report confirms that the Company has complied with all the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other necessary compliances under 
various Acts, in so far as applicable to the Company. The report does not contain any qualifications, reservation or adverse 
remark.

Observations in the report are on the basis of facts and are self-explanatory.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATES

The Company do not have any subsidiary, joint ventures or associates.Therefore, statement containing the salient features of 
financial statements of the Company’s subsidiary in Form AOC-1 is not applicable.

PUBLIC DEPOSIT

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted/renewed any public deposits under Section73 of the Act read with 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

INSURANCE

All the insurable interests of your Company including inventories, buildings, plant and machinery and liabilities under legislative 
enactments are adequately insured.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company has ensured continued compliance of Corporate Governance requirements during the period under review. Your 
Company lays strong emphasis on transparency, disclosure and independent supervision to increase various stakeholders’ 
value. As required by the provisions vis-à-vis compliance of corporate governance requirements of SEBI (Listing obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the reports on Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance 
as well as the certificate regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance, are annexed and form an integral part of 
this report. Further, the Company regularly submits the quarterly corporate governance compliance report to the BSE and also 
uploads the same on its website.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

As on March 31, 2023, there were no outstanding loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act. 
The details of changes in the Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are 
given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Agreement and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company has devised a Policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board, 
Committees and other individual Directors which include criteria for performance evaluation of the Non-Executive Directors and 
Executive Directors. The Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, the individual Directors (including 
the Chairman) as well as an evaluation of the working of all Board Committees.

The Board of Directors was assisted by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Some of the performance indicators 
based on which evaluation takes place are experience, expertise, knowledge and skills required for achieving strategy and for 
implementation of best governance practices which ultimately contributes to the growth of the Company in compliances with 
all policies of the Company.
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COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES

A] Audit Committee

Audit Committee had been duly constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company as per the terms of the provisions of Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The terms 
of reference of the Audit Committee has been approved by the Board of Directors. Composition of the Audit Committee, number 
of meetings held during the year under review, brief terms of reference and other details have been provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

During the year under review, the Composition of Audit Committee comprises two (2) Independent Directors and one (1) Non-
Executive Director and Mr. Chandar Vir Singh Juneja was Chairperson of the Committee, Mr. Anurag Gupta and Mrs. Richa 
Bansali, were the Members of the Audit Committee. Mr. Pramod Kumar Gupta had resigned with effect from 13th February, 2023 
and Anurag Gupta has appointed as the Member due to re-constitution of Audit Committee.

B] Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Nomination & Remuneration Committee had been duly constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company as per the terms 
of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 19 of the 
Listing Regulations. The terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee have been approved by the Board of 
Directors. Composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, number of meetings held during the year under review, 
brief terms of reference and other details have been provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this 
Annual Report.

During the year under review, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises two (2) Independent Directors and one 
Non-Executive Director and Mrs. Richa Bansali, Independent Director of the Company became the Chairperson of the Committee 
and Mr. Anurag Gupta and Mr. Chandar Vir Singh Juneja were the Members of the Committee.

Mr. Pramod Kumar Gupta had resigned with effect from 13th February, 2023 and Anurag Gupta has appointed as the Member due 
to re-constitution of Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

C] Stakeholder Relationship Committee

During the year under review, the Stakeholder Relationship Committee comprises two (2) Independent Directors and one (1) 
Non-Executive Director which includes Mr. Anurag Gupta as the Chairperson of the Committee and Mr. Chandar Vir Singh Juneja 
and Mrs. Richa Bhansali as the Members of the Committee, number of meetings held during the year under review, brief terms 
of reference and other details have been provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

Mr. Pramod Kumar Gupta had resigned with effect from 13th February, 2023 and Anurag Gupta has appointed as the Member due 
to re-constitution of Stakeholder relationship Committee.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and 
appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The Nomination & Remuneration Policy is stated on 
website of the Company i.e. www.bccfuba.com .

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has framed Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors pursuant to Listing Agreement and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and uploaded the same on the website of the Company. The web 
link to access the aforesaid programme is www.bccfuba.com.

MEETINGS

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, 08 (Eight) Board Meetings were held. Further, details of the meetings 
of the Board and its Committees are given in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the Annual Report and 
the intervening gap between meetings were within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

As stipulated under Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Management 
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Discussion and Analysis Report is enclosed as a separate part of this report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company does not qualify under the criteria as prescribed to adopt the corporate social responsibility.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

 Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act, the Directors state that

a)	 In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable accounting standards have 
been followed and there are no material departures from the same.

b)	 The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year as on 31st March 2023 and of the profit of the Company for that period.

c)	 The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities.

d)	 The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e)	 The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f)	 The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in Ordinary Course of the Business and on Arm’s Length basis.

No Material Related Party Transactions, i.e. transactions exceeding ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover as per the 
last audited financial statements, were entered during the year by your Company. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party 
Transactions as required under Section 134 (3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC 2 is not applicable.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary declarations u/s 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 from Independent Directors 
confirming they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

SIGNIFICANT /MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

There are no significant/material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status of 
your Company and its operations in future.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company has put in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements.

Your Company has adopted accounting policies which are in line with the applicable Accounting Standards that continue to 
apply under Section 133 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable. Your Company, in preparing 
its financial statements makes judgments and estimates based on sound policies.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which requires the Statutory Auditors to report to the Audit 
Committee and / or Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board of Directors of the Company state that, during the year under review the applicable Secretarial Standards, relating to 
Board Meetings and General Meetings respectively have been duly followed by the Company.
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ENVIORNMENT & GREEN INITIATIVE

The Company is committed to the environment. The Company continues to upkeep trade effluent and chemical treatment plant. 
Continuous check of air and water pollution at manufacturing unit is made and monitored.

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES

The Equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (BSE) and necessary listing fees have been paid up to date.

OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at workplace, New Act named “The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013” has been notified on 9th December 2013. Under the said Act, our Company had 
constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at workplace of any women 
employee. During the year under review, the ICC has not received or disposed any complaint relating to sexual harassment at 
workplace of any women employee.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets. Your Company continuously invests in attraction, 
retention and development of talent on an ongoing basis. A number of programs that provide focused people’s attention are 
currently underway. Your Company thrust is on promoting of talent internally through job rotation and job enlargement.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year under review, your Company enjoyed cordial relationship with workers and employees at all levels.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a vigil mechanism, incorporating a whistle blower policy in lines with the Regulation 22 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in order to protect the interest of the employees and 
executives in reporting their grievances in a protected manner. It also provides for the protection against victimization of directors 
and employees who avail this mechanism and allows direct communication with the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, in 
certain appropriate and exceptional circumstances. The policy on vigil mechanism may be accessed on the Company’s website 
www.bccfuba.com.
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By Order of the Board
For BCC Fuba India Limited

						      Chandar Vir Singh Juneja	 Abhinav Bhardwaj
 						      Chairperson	 Director
		   				    DIN-00050410		   DIN-06785065
Date:- August 24, 2023
Place:- Delhi
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ANNEXURE-A

INFORMATION   ON   ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND   FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTFLOW

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Your Company continues to give high priority to conservation of energy on an on-going basis. The required information in the 
prescribed ‘Form A’ are given hereunder.

FORM ‘A’

A. POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION
1 Electricity Current year Previous year
a Purchased

Units 21,23,495 20,07,902
Total Amount (Rs. In Lacs) 123.43 122.59
-Rate per unit (Rs.) 5.81 6.11

b Own Generation - -
i Through Diesel generator

-units 21,490 27,740
-units per Ltr. of Diesel oil 3.37 3.42
-Cost per unit (Rs.) 25.48 24.87

ii Through steam turbine/generator NIL NIL
2 Coal NIL NIL
3 Furnace Oil NIL NIL
4 Others Internal Generation NIL NIL

B. CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION
Product Printed Circuit Boards
Electricity Consumed 48.12 46.00
Per Square Meter 279.69 299.66

Research and Development (R&D)

Research and development continue to be given high priority. A number of developments have been incorporated in the products 
due to these efforts.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

The technology imported from M/s Fuba Printed Circuits GMBH (Formerly Fuba Hans Kolbe & Co.) the technical collaborator of 
your Company, has been fully absorbed and we are able to manufacture the products without any foreign technical assistance. 
The company has developed capacity to manufacture the multilayer boards and double-sided boards with SMT pads.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particular 2022-23 (Rs. In 
lakhs)

2021-22 (Rs. In 
lakhs)

Foreign Exchange Used
     a. Travelling Expenses - -
     b. Raw materials/ chemicals/ stores and spares etc. imported 1172.77 1340.85
     c. Others (P&M) 2.46 10.56
Foreign Exchange Earned - -
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ANNEXURE-B

1.	 The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 (1) (i) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the Company for the Financial Year are as follows:

Name of the Director and Key 
Managerial Personal

Designation Remuneration   
(Rs. In Lakhs)

% Increase in 
remuneration from 
previous year

Ratio (Remuneration 
of Director to Median 
Remuneration)

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Yadav Company Secretary 2.45 -   2.08:1
Mr. N. K. Jain Chief Financial Officer 11.23 25.00%   9.54:1
Mr. Abhinav Bhardwaj Executive Director 15.30 27.50%   13.00:1

Note: For this purpose, sitting fees paid to the Directors have not been considered as remuneration.The median remuneration 
of employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs. 1,17,700 /-

In the financial year, there was decrease in the median remuneration of employees;

There were 128 Permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on March 31, 2023;

Relationship between average increase in remuneration and Company performance: - The following factors are considered 
while giving increase in the remuneration:

Financial performance of the Company, Comparison with peer companies, and Industry benchmarking and consideration 
towards cost-of-living adjustment/ inflation Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel(s) against 
the performance of the Company: - For the financial year 2022-23, Key Managerial Personnel were paid 1.01% of turnover 
respectively of the Company.

2.	 (i)	 Statement showing the names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn:

Name 
of the 
Employee

Designation Remuneration
(Gross p.a.)

Nature of 
employment

Qualifications and 
experience

Date of 
commencement 
of employment

Age Last 
employment 
held

% Of 
Equity 
shares 
held

Relative 
of any 
director 
or 
manager

Abhinav 
Bhardwaj

Executive 
Director

15,30,000 Permanent Chartered 
Accountant
8 years

01.10.2020 31 - 14.70% NA

N K Jain Chief Financial 
Officer

11,23,380 Permanent M COM
37 years

28.6.1991 60 Techno fab 
engineering 
Ltd.

0.04 NA

Dinesh 
Chandra

GM 
(Marketing)

10,64,256 Permanent Graduate
34 Years

12.10.2020 52 Info power 
Technologies 
Pvt. Ltd.

NA NA

Deepak 
Kumar

HOD (Quality)  7,20,500 Permanent Graduate Diploma 
in PCB Design & 
Manufacturing
14 Years

07.03.2018 36 India circuits 
Ltd

NA NA

Vinnet 
Bansal

HOD 
(Maintenance)

 7,20,500 Permanent Graduate
20 years

01.11. 2021 46 Bhansali 
Engineering 
Polymers 
Limited

NA NA

Suresh 
Kumar 
Dadwal

Asst. Engineer  6,39,556 Permanent Diploma In 
Mechanical 
Draftsman
36 Years

15.04.1991 58 Shark Ltd NA NA

Sreekala 
. N

Accountant  5,68,848 Permanent B.COM
27 Years

18.06.2001 49 Sanjay 
Jawarani & 
co.

NA NA
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Ashok 
Kumar 
Sharma

HOD (CNC)  4,77,685 Permanent MATRIC PASSED
36 YEARS

15.05.1991 54 Electronic 
circuits ltd

NA NA

A.K. Rana Production 
Officer

 4,17,356 Permanent ITI
 36 Years

15.05.1991 54 Electronic 
circuits Ltd

NA NA

Ravinder 
Kumar

Manager
(Maintenance)

 4,25,820 Permanent Diploma In
ELECTRONICS & 
COMMUNICATION
9 YEARS

01.07.2019 39 Signum 
Electrowave

NA NA

(ii)	 Employed throughout the year and were in receipt of remuneration at the rate of not less than Rs. 1 crore and 2 Lakh per 
annum. - Nil

(iii) 	 Employment for a part of the financial year and separated, were in receipt of remuneration at the rate of not less than Rs. 
8 Lakh 50 thousand per month: Nil

(iv) 	 Employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, 
or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time 
director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the 
equity shares of the company. - Nil

II. 	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

	 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated: -
S. No. Name and Description of main products/ 

services
NIC Code of the                  
Product/ services

% to Total turnover of the 
Company

1. PRINTED CIRCUIT BOARD 2610 100.00%
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements)Regulations 2015)

To,

The Members

B C C Fuba India Limited
4KM, Swarghat Road,
Nalagarh, Distt Solan,
Himachal Pradesh-174101

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosure received from the Directors of BCC Fuba India 
Limited having CIN L51395HP1985PLC012209 and having registered office at 4 KM, Swarghat Road, Nalagarh, Distt 
Solan,Himachal Pradesh- 174101 and (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for 
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of 
the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number 
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its 
officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending 
on 31st March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority :

S No Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment Designation

1 Chandar Vir Singh Juneja 00050410 09.01.2017 Non Executive- Independent 

Director

2 Vishal Tayal 01043995 09.01.2017 Non-Executive - Non 
Independent Director

3 Richa Bhansali 07680199 09.01.2017 Non Executive- Independent 

Director

4. Mona Tayal 08099174 11.04.2018 Non-Executive - Non 
Independent Director

5 Anurag Gupta 03629487 31.07.2019 Non-Executive - Non 
Independent Director

6 Abhinav Bhardwaj 06785065 31.07.2019 Executive Director

7 Hari Datt Jangid 08542843 27.09.2019 Non-Executive - Independent 
Director

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management 
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Ghaziabad
Date: 27.07.2023

For Pankhuri Mathur & Associates
 Company Secretaries

Pankhuri Mathur
M. No. FCS 10301

COP: 12559
PRCN: 2784/2022

 UDIN: F010301E000691291
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FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

To

The Members

BCC Fuba India Limited
CIN: L51395HP1985PLC012209
Regtd Off: 4 km Swarghat Road,
Nalagarh, Distt Solan,
Himachal Pradesh - 174101

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by B C C Fuba India Limited CIN: L51395HP1985PLC012209 (hereinafter called the Company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms, returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the company, its officers and authorised representatives 
during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion the company has during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023

•	 Complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and

•	 Proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place

To the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereunder:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31” March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(I)	 The Companies Act 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under as amended from time to time;

(II)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(III)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(IV)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(V)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board India Act 1992 
(SEBI Act’)-

(a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

(b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with the client;

(d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations 2018.

(VI)	 During the period under review, provisions of the following Act/ Regulations are not applicable to the Company:

(a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

(b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;

(c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
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2018;

(e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible Securities) Regulations 
2021;

(f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based employee benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations 
2021;

(VII)	  We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(a)	 Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India related to Board Meetings, 
General Meetings.

(b)	 The SEBI (Listing Obligations Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Listing Agreements 
entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

(VIII)	 The Company is in the business of manufacture single-sided, double-sided and multilayer (up to 8 layers) PCBs 
for a vast variety of applications, being PCB electronic industry. As informed by the management the following 
other Laws specifically applicable to the Company are as under –

1.	 The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

2.	 The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

3.	 The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

4.	 Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1976

5.	 Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

6.	 The Factories Act, 1948

7.	 The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946

8.	 Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

9.	 Legal Metrology Act, 2009

10.	The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

11.	The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

12.	The Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881

13.	The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

We have checked the compliance management system of the Company to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
adequacy of systems in place to ensure compliance of specifically applicable laws and this verification was done 
on test basis. We believe that Audit evidence which we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, we 
believe that the compliance management system of the Company is adequate to ensure compliance of laws specifically 
applicable to the Company. Further, regarding notices from the statutory authorities whenever received, are reported as 
a part of process for compliance reporting and appropriate action is taken from time to time.

During the period under review, the company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
guidelines, standards etc mentioned above.

We further report that :

1.	 The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like Direct & Indirect Tax laws, has not been reviewed 
in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by Statutory Financial Auditor and other designated 
professionals.
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2.	 The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors and Women Director. During the year under review, Mr. Parmod 
Kumar Gupta (DIN 06408347) has resigned from the post of Non-Executive director of the company with effect 
from 13th February, 2023. The changes in the composition of the Board of directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

3.	 Adequate notices were given to all directors of the Board Meetings; agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting.

4.	 Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent and therefore, no dissenting views were required to be 
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

5.	 All independent directors of the company are registered as an Independent director in the Independent directors 
databank maintained by IICA.

6.	 During the year under review, M/s Rajesh K Goel & Associates Chartered Accountants (FRN:025273N) has resigned 
from the post of Statutory Auditors of the company with effect from 30th June, 2022. M/s Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur 
& Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN 007895N) have been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to 
fill the casual vacancy caused due to resignation of Rajesh K Goel & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (FRN 
025273N), The aforementioned change in the Statutory Auditor has been carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act.

7.	 During the year under review, a fire had broken out at the manufacturing facility of the Company situated at 4th 
KM Swarghat Road, Nalagarh - 174 101, Himachal Pradesh on 08.05.2022. The fire was extinguished within 
short time by the Fire Department of Nalagarh and no casualty was caused. The event was reported to the stock 
exchange as a material event as Intimation under Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listiing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the company has not bought back its equity shares and there were no 
instances of –

(i)	 Public/Rights/Preferential issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity.

(ii)	 Redemption of securities.

(iii)	 Merger/ Amalgamation/Reconstruction.

(iv)	 Decisions by the Members in pursuance to section 180 of the Act

(v)	 Foreign technical collaborations.

We further report that our Audit was subjected only to verify the adequacy of systems and procedures that are in 
place for ensuring proper compliances on the part of the company and we are not responsible for any lapses in those 
compliances on the part of the company.

Place: Ghaziabad
Date: 27.07.2023

For Pankhuri Mathur & Associates
Company Secretaries

Pankhuri Mathur
M. No. FCS 10301

COP: 12559
PRCN: 2784/2022

 UDIN: F010301E000691135

The report has to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 1 and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure -1 to the Secretarial Audit report

To

The Members

BCC Fuba India Limited
CIN: L51395HP1985PLC012209
Regtd Off: 4 km Swarghat Road,
Nalagarh, Distt Solan,
Himachal Pradesh - 174101

Auditor’s responsibility

Based on Audit, our responsibilty is to express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable laws and maintenance of records 
by the company. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards CSAS 1 to CSAS 4 (CSAS) prescribed by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India(ICSI). These standards require that the auditor complies with statutory and regulatory 
requirements and plans and performs the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and 
maintenance of records.

Due to inherent imitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there may be unavoidable risks that 
some misstatements or non compliance may not be detected , even though the audit is properly planned and performed in 
accordance with the CSAS. Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of the Company.

4.	 The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the 
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

5.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Ghaziabad
Date: 27.07.2023

For Pankhuri Mathur & Associates
Company Secretaries

Pankhuri Mathur
M. No. FCS 10301

COP: 12559
PRCN: 2784/2022

 UDIN: F010301E000691135
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

	 Company’s philosophy on code of corporate governance:

	 B C C Fuba strives for excellence in corporate governance practices, which the Company recognizes is fundamental to 
securing the trust of investors and key stakeholders. B C C Fuba’s management, together with our Board of Directors, 
continually evaluates processes and implements procedures designed to maintain strong governance and operations 
standards. In doing so, we strive to manage the Company according to the highest principles of responsibility and integrity, 
compliance with all applicable laws with true letter and spirit and align the interests of management and the Board with 
those of our Stakeholder’s. The Company is in full compliance with the requirements under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 
and any amendment made thereunder, and the Listing Agreement entered with BSE Ltd.

	 Board of Directors:

The Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

Composition and Category of Directors as on March 31, 2023, is as follows:

The Board of Directors consists of Seven (7) Directors.

Composition and category of Director is as follows.

Non-Executive Directors	 Ms. Mona Tayal (DIN- 08099174)
				    Mr. Vishal Tayal (DIN-01043995)
				    Mr. Anurag Gupta (DIN- 03629487)
Non-Executive and	 Mr. Chandar Vir Singh Juneja (DIN-00050410)
Independent Directors		 Ms. Richa Bhansali (DIN-07680199)			 
					    Mr. Hari Datt Jangid (DIN-08542843)

Executive Director 	 Mr. Abhinav Bhardwaj (DIN-06785065)

The Board in consultation with Nomination and Remuneration Committee selects new Directors including Independent 
Directors. The Committee after considering qualifications, positive attributes, number of directorships and memberships 
held in various committees make recommendations for the selection of Directors. All independent directors possess the 
requisite qualifications and are very experienced in their own fields.

As per the current provisions of law, every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board where he participates 
as such as a director and thereafter at the first board meeting of every financial year, shall give a declaration of his 
independence as provided under law. Necessary disclosures have been obtained from all the directors regarding their 
directorship and have been taken on record by the Board.

	 Board Meetings, Attendance at the Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting, Outside Directorships and 
other Board Committees:

	 None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 committees and chairman of more than 5 committees {as 
specified in the Regulation 26(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015}

Director No. of
Board 

meetings 
attended

during the 
year

Attendance 
at previous 

AGM held on 
30.09.2022

No. of
other 

Directorship(s) 
held

Number of
membership/
Chairmanship 
in Committees

Executive/ 
Non executive/ 
Independent

Number 
of Shares 

held

1.Mr.Chandar Vir Singh 
Juneja

4 Yes 2 3 Non-Executive and 
Independent

0

2.Mr. Vishal Tayal 3 Yes 2 0 Non-executive and 
non-Independent

11,17,084

3.Mr. Parmod Kumar 
Gupta

8 No 0 0 Non-executive and 
non-Independent

167,000

4. Mrs. Richa Bhansali 8 Yes 0 3 Non-executive and 
Independent

0
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5. Mrs. Mona Tayal 4 Yes 0 0 Non-executive and 
non-independent

99,942

6. Mr. Hari Datt Jangid 5 Yes 0 0 Non-Executive and 
Independent

0

7. Mr. Abhinav 
Bhardwaj

7 Yes 0 0 Executive 22,50,000

8.Mr. Anurag Gupta 6 Yes 4 3 Non-executive and 
Non independent

0

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR DIRECTORS

All new Non-Executive Independent Directors induced to the Board are being exposed to the familiarization program to 
understand their role and responsibilities in clear terms and thus to discharge their duties and responsibility in an efficient 
manner.

Also, the policy of separate meetings of independent directors also helps in achieving the goal of updating them with all 
recent business-related issues whereby the other executive directors throw light on relevant issues by sharing their views, 
opinions and expertise on those issues.

The familiarization program can be accessed on the company’s website at www.bccfuba.com.

EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board in consultation with Nomination and Remuneration Committee formulates an evaluation program to analyze 
the performance of executive/non-executive/independent Directors through peer evaluation method, whereby a director is 
evaluated by all other Directors as against some performance indicators. The Board periodically evaluates the performance 
of Directors to identify possible areas of improvement.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD AND THE DATE ON WHICH HELD

Generally, the Board meets once every quarter to discuss the quarterly results and other relevant items and also at the 
time of AGM of the shareholders. Additional Board meetings are convened as per the exigencies/ urgencies of business 
situations.

Eight Board meetings were held during the year ended March 31, 2023, which were held on the below mentioned dates: 
May 30, 2022, July 01, 2022, July 29, 2022, August 12, 2022, August 22, 2022, September 01, 2022, November 14, 
2022, and February 13, 2023.

	 The Board has unrestricted access to the company related information and the items / matters which are generally placed 
before the Board include:

-	 Quarterly results of the company

-	 Company’s Annual Financial results, Financial Statements, Report of Board and Auditors.

-	 Minutes of the meeting of Audit Committee and other committees of the Board.

-	 Appointment, remuneration and resignation of Directors.

-	 Disclosures of Director’s interest and their shareholding.

-	 Appointment/ removal of KMPs, Internal and Secretarial Auditor

-	 Declaration of Independent Directors at the time of appointment/ on annual basis

-	 Significant changes in accounting policies and internal controls

-	 Statement of significant related party transactions

-	 Borrowing of monies, giving guarantees or providing security

-	 Compliance Certificate(s)

	 The Chairman/Company Secretary of the Company provides that while preparing the agenda items and minutes of the 
Board meeting, all the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 are being complied. The agenda of the meeting 
along with the notice are circulated in advance to all the Directors for facilitating meaningful and focused discussion on the 
agenda items.
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MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As per Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, Independent Directors are required 
to meet at least once during the year without the presence of other Executive Directors, for the purpose of reviewing 
the performance of Chairman, access the flow of information and to review the performance of other non-independent 
Directors. The meeting of Independent Directors took place on Feb. 13, 2023 to discuss the various strategic issues 
relevant to the Company. The meeting ensures best corporate governance practices are being carried on and adhered to by 
the Company, which is in the best interest of the Company and its stakeholders.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Committees of the Board play a crucial role in enforcing the corporate governance policies in the Company. The Board 
Committees are set up under the approval of the Board of Directors and their terms are being decided by the Board as per 
the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations.

The Board has established the following committees for their effective functioning:

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The broad terms of reference of the Audit Committee are to interact with the Internal and Statutory Auditors, overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process and to review with the management the annual financial statements before 
submitting to the Board and includes:

1.	 Appointment and fixation of remuneration payable to Auditors.

2.	 Review Quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results before submission to the Board

3.	 Review accounting policies followed by the Company

4.	 The adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system and procedures in the Company.

COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in consonance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All the members of the 
Committee have relevant working experience in financial matters.

Mr. Pramod Kumar Gupta had resigned with effect from 13th February 2023 and Anurag Gupta was appointed as the 
Member due to re-constitution of Audit Committee.

Audit Committee consists of the following members

•	 Mr. Chandar Vir Singh Juneja

•	 Mrs. Richa Bhansali

•	 Mr. Anurag Gupta

The Company Secretary of the Company acted as Secretary to the Committee.

Function of Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of the Company’s is entrusted with the primary responsibility to supervise the company financial 
reporting process including:

(1)	 Oversight of the Company financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

(2) 	 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

(3) 	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

(4) 	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to 
the board for approval, with particular reference to:

(a) 	 Matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the board’s report in 
terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;
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(b) 	 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

(c) 	 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;

(d) 	 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

(e) 	 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

(f) 	 Disclosure of any related party transactions;

(g) 	 Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

(5) 	 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

(6) 	 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, 
rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of 
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this 
matter;

(7) 	 Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

(8) 	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties;

(9) 	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(10)	Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;

(11)	Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

(12)	Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control 
systems;

(13)	Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, 
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal 
audit;

(14)	Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

(15)	Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected 
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

(16)	Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

(17)	To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in 
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

(18)	To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

(19)	Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. 
of the candidate;

(20)	Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.

All recommendations made by the Committee during the year were accepted by the Board.

During the year, the committee has met Five times. Attendances of each member at the committee meeting were as follows:
 SI. No. Name of the Members Status No. of 

meeting(s) held
No. of Meeting 
attended

1 Mr. Chandar Vir Singh Juneja Chairperson & Independent Director 5 4
2 Mr. Anurag Gupta Member & Non-Executive Director 5 1
3. Mrs. Richa Bhansali Member & Non-Executive Independent Director 5 4
4. Mr. Pramod Kumar Gupta Member & Non-Executive Director 5 4
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

In compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has renamed the existing “Remuneration Committee” 
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as the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee.” The Committee is governed through Nomination & Remuneration 
Policy and the web link is www.bccfuba.com to access the details of the same.

Mr. Pramod Kumar Gupta had resigned with effect from 13th February 2023 and Anurag Gupta was appointed as the 
Member due to re-constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

The Constitution of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee consisting of the following members are as follows

•	 Mr. Chandar Vir Singh Juneja

•	 Mr. Anurag Gupta

•	 Mrs. Richa Bhansali

	 The brief terms of reference of the Committee inter alia, include the following:

• 	 Succession planning of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Employees;

• 	 Identifying and selection of candidates for appointment as Directors / Independent Directors based on certain laid 
down criteria;

• 	 Identifying potential individuals for appointment as Key Managerial Personnel and to other Senior Management 
positions;

• 	 Formulate and review from time to time the policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and senior management employees and their remuneration;

• 	 Review the performance of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Employees based on certain criteria as 
approved by the Board.

	 The attendance details of the meeting of the Committees are as follows:

SI. No. Name of the Members Status No. of 
meeting(s) held

No. of Meeting 
attended

1. Mrs. Richa Bhansali Chairman & Non-Executive Independent Director 1 1
2. Mr. Chandar Vir Singh Juneja Member & Independent Director 1 1
3. Mr. Anurag Gupta Member & Non-Executive Director 1 1
Remuneration paid to non-executive directors:

No remuneration is paid to Non-executive Directors except sitting fees for attending the meeting of Board of Directors and 
committee thereof.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

Mr. Pramod Kumar Gupta had resigned with effect from 13th February 2023 and Anurag Gupta was appointed as the 
Member due to re-constitution of Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

The Constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee consisting of the following members are as follows

•	 Mr. Anurag Gupta, Chairperson

•	 Mrs. Richa Bhansali, Member

•	 Mr. Chandar Vir Singh Juneja, Member

The Committee’s composition and terms of reference are in consonance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 
and SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The committee overviews the case of transfer/transmission of shares, issue of duplicate share certificates, review the 
performance of the Registrar & Transfer Agents.

The Committee expressed satisfaction on Company’s performance for redressing the investor’s complaints received during 
the year. All complaints received from shareholders during the year have been readdressed. No shareholders complaints 
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were pending as on 31.03.2023.

The attendance details of the meeting of the Committees are as follows:

SI. No. Name of the Members Status No. of meeting(s) held No. of Meeting 
attended

1. Mr. Anurag Gupta Chairperson & Non-Executive Director 3 1
2. Mr. Chandar Vir Singh Juneja Member & Independent Director 3 3
3. Mrs. Richa Bhansali Member & Non- Executive Independent 

Director
3 2

4. Mr. Pramod Kumar Gupta Chairperson & Non- Executive Director 3 2
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Yadav is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company.

Details of Shareholders Complaints

S. No. Particulars No. of Complaint received No. of complaint resolved No. of complaint 
Pending

1 On receipt of shares lodged for transfer Nil Nil Nil
2 Other (non-receipt of Annual Report etc.) Nil Nil Nil
Share Transfer/ Transmission Committee:

The Share Transfer / Transmission Committee is formed as per the requirement of relevant rules exclusively to look into 
share transfer and related applications received from shareholders, with a view to accelerating the transfer procedures.

Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil mechanism

The Company has established a well-defined vigil mechanism for addressing the grievances/unethical behavior by the 
employees and also to report prima facie violations of applicable laws. The aggrieved employee has direct access to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Code of Conduct for the Board members & Senior Management Team:

In compliance with Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the board has framed Code of Conduct for all Board Members and senior 
management Team. All Board members and senior management have affirmed compliance with the Code as on March 31, 
2023 and declaration to that effect, signed by the Chief Executing officer.

The Code of Conduct is also available on the Company’s website www.bccfuba.com

General Body Meetings:

The details of the last three Annual General meeting:

Year AGM Venue Day & Date Time Special Resolution 
Passed

Special resolution 
passed by Postal 
Ballot

2019- 20 34th The Annual General Meeting 
is conducted through the 
Video Conferencing

Wednesday, 30th 
September, 2020

10:00 
AM

NIL None

2020-21 35th The Annual General Meeting 
is conducted through the 
Video Conferencing

Thursday
30th September, 
2021

10.00 
AM

NIL None
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 2021-22  36th The Annual General Meeting 
is conducted through the 
Video Conferencing

Friday
30th September 
2022

11.30
AM

1. Appointment of Mr. 
Chandar Vir Singh Juneja 
(DIN 00050410) as an 
Independent Director of 
the Company passed as 
Special Resolution
2. Appointment of 
Mrs. Richa Bhansali 
(DIN 07680199) as an 
Independent Director of 
the Company passed as 
Special Resolution

None

	 No resolution was required to be put through postal ballot. None of the business at the ensuing Annual General Meeting is 
proposed to be passed by postal ballot.

	 Disclosures

The related party transactions have been disclosed in Notes of Account forming part of the Statement of Accounts for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2023 and since the necessary disclosures were made in respect of the said transactions 
to the respective Boards of Directors, no transaction is considered to be in potential conflict with the interests of the 
company at large.

The Non-Executive Directors had no pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-à-vis the company during the year except 
receipt of sitting fee for attending the meetings of the Board/Committee.

There has not been any non-compliance, penalties or structures imposed on the company by the Stock Exchange (s), 
Securities and Exchange Board of India or any other statutory authority, on any matter relating to the capital markets, during 
the last three years.

The Company has duly complied with all the mandatory Regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 Communication to the Shareholders

The Company follows the practice of disseminating timely information on financial performance and other relevant 
information to the stakeholders and to all Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed. The quarterly/
annual financial results of the Company were published in the following newspapers: The Financial Express and Jansatta 
and displayed on the Company’s website.

The Company also maintains its official website www.bccfuba.com wherein it maintains a separate and dedicated section 
called “Investor Relations” wherein it provides all the requisite information pertaining to shareholders.

Annual Reports in the downloadable format are also being provided for on the website and also regularly sent to the 
shareholders by-mail, whose e-mail address are available with the Registrar & Transfer Agent and with the company.

Moreover, the Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual Results and other BSE Filings are also available on the BSE website, 
www.bseindia.com in an electronic website, which can be accessed by providing the Scrip Code-517246 and can be 
downloaded.

The Company keeps regular track of the complaints of the investors through a user-friendly web based redressal forum-
SCORES and resolve complaints in the form of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) which can also be viewed by the complainant 
shareholder as well as the concerned Stock Exchange.

The quarterly financial results during the financial year 2022-23 has been published.

Official news releases and notices etc. are sent to the BSE Limited via BSE Listing Centre Portal where shares of the 
company are listed.
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	 General shareholders information:

(a)	 Company Registration Details

	 The Company is registered in the State of Himachal Pradesh with Corporate Identity No. 
(CIN) L51395HP1985PLC012209.

(b) 	 Annual General Meeting:

	 Date and time: 20th September 2023 at 11:00 A.M to be held held through Video Conferencing (VC).

(c) 	 Financial Calendar (tentative and subject to change)

S. No. Particulars Information
1. Annual General Meeting: 37th

2. Date& Time 20.09.2023, 11:30 A.M
3. Financial Year 01st April 2022 to 31st March 2023
4. Financial Calendar 2022-23

Results for quarter/year ending:
(a) 30th June 2022 12.08.2022
(b) 30th September 2022 14.11.2022
(c) 31st December 2022 13.02.2023
(d) 31st March 2023 16.05.2023

5. Book Closure Date 14.09.2023 to 20.09.2023
6. Dividend Payment date The Company has not recommended or paid 

any dividend during the financial year under 
review

7. Stock Code BSE 517246
(d) 	 Listing of Equity Shares: Mumbai (BSE)

Phiroze Jeejebhoy Towers, Dalal Steet, Mumbai-400 001

The Company has paid the Annual Listing fees for the Financial Year 2022-23.

(e) 	 Stock Market Data: Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

BSE Quote : (BCCFUBA) -517246

Month
F.Y. – 2022-2023

High 
Price

Low 
Price

Apr 22 26.10 22.15
May 22 26.45 18.10
Jun 22 19.95 13.70
Jul 22 17.85 15.25
Aug 22 21.30 15.30
Sep 22 24.70 19.25
Oct 22 25.30 20.00
Nov 22 25.05 19.65
Dec 22 23.45 18.30
Jan 23 28.85 21.05
Feb 23 27.15 22.35
Mar 23 25.99 21.50

(f)	 Status of dematerialization as on 31.03.2023

Particulars No. of shares % of capital
NSDL 5705702 37.27
CDSL 7913390 51.69
Total Dematerialized 13619092 88.96
PHYSICAL 1690958 11.04
TOTAL 15310050 100.00
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(g) 	 Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and Communication Address:

	 Link Intime India Private Ltd.

	 Noble Heights, 1st Floor, Plot No. NH 2, LSC, C-1 Block, Near Savitri Market, Janakpuri, New Delhi 110058, Ph-011-
41410592-94

	 Share Transfer System:

	 The Board has delegated authority for approving transfer, transmission etc. of shares to the Stakeholder’s Relationship 
Committee, who will approve the relevant transfers after being reviewed and approved by the Company Secretary, and 
the same will be forwarded to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. The decisions of the committee will be considered 
in the Board Meeting.

	 The Company also obtained certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice w.r.t share transfer formalities under 
Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and files the same 
with the Stock Exchange on half-yearly basis.

(h) 	 Shareholding pattern as on 31.03.2023

Sl. No. Category No. of shares Percentage
1
2
3
4

Promoters
Indian Financial Institutions, Banks, Mutual Funds
Foreign Institutional Investors/ NRIs
Others

57,97,405
29,300
26,409

94,56,936

37.87
0.19
0.17
61.77

Total 1,53,10,050 100.00
	 Distribution on shareholding as on 31.03.2023

Shares holding of nominal 
value of Rs.10

No. of Shareholders % of shareholders No. of Equity shares % of shareholding

1 to 500 10541 91.8046 1526843 9.9728
501-1000 478 4.163 389426 2.5436
1001-2000 207 1.8028 323492 2.1129
2001-3000 57 0.4964 149363 0.9756
3001-4000 34 0.2961 122284 0.7987
4001-5000 30 0.2613 142974 0.9339
5001-10000 46 0.4006 333703 2.1796
10001 & above 89 0.7751 12321965 80.4829
Total 11482 100.000 15310050` 100.000

Plant Location:

The Plant of the Company is situated at 4th Km., Swarghat Road, Nalagarh, District Solan, Himachal Pradesh. – 174101, India.

Address for Correspondence:

109, Wing- 2, Hans Bhawan, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi – 110002 P: +91-11- 49287223

Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance

As provided under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Auditor’s Certificate certifying the 
compliance with Listing Regulations forms part of this Report.

CEO/CFO certification’

The requisite certificate is provided in this Report in terms of (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015

The above report was adopted by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 24th August 2023.

Place: New Delhi	 Chandar Vir Singh Juneja
Date: 24.08.2023	 Chairperson
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AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER SEBI (LISTING 
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015:

To the Members of

BCC Fuba India Limited

We have examined the implementation of conditions of Corporate Governance by B C C Fuba India LIMITED (the company) 
during the year ended 31.03.2023, as has been provided pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to 
review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the 
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

On the basis of our review and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the conditions of corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the abovementioned Listing Agreement/ Regulations with the stock Exchange have been complied 
with in all material respect by the Company.
	 For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Place: New Delhi
Date: 24.08.2023

 Sd/-
									       

Vijay Kumar Bhardwaj
 (Partner)

					      ICAI Reg. No. 086426
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015]

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board that:

A.	 We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2023 and that to the best 
of our knowledge and belief:

(1)	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading.

(2)	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B.	 We provide, to the best of our knowledge and belief, that there are no transactions entered into by the listed entity during 
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity’s code of conduct.

C.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated 
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial reporting and there have been no 
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, which should have been disclosed to the auditors and the 
audit committee.

D.	 We further certify that:

- 	 there have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

- 	 the Company has complied with a new accounting standard, IND-AS, applicable from April 1, 2017.

- 	 there has been no instance of significant fraud of which we have become aware and no involvement therein, of 
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting.

Date: 24.08.2023 		   			    For 
B C C Fuba India Limited

Place: New Delhi
						     Abhinav Bhardwaj 	 Narendra Kumar Jain
						     Chief Executive Officer	 Chief Financial Officer

DECLARATION FOR COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT

I, Abhinav Bhardwaj, Executive Director of the Company, do here by declare that all the Directors and Senior Management 
Personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of the conduct of the company for the financial year ended on March 31, 
2023.

Abhinav Bhardwaj
Executive Director

DIN: 06785065
Date: 24.08.2023
Place: New Delhi
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Performance: 

During the year under consideration, there have been many improvements, both on the domestic as well as international fronts. 
Your Company’s revenue from its core operations of printed circuit board manufacturing has increased to INR 28,65,19,916/-, 
with a Profit before Interest Tax and Depreciation of INR 3,38,52,356/-. 

Our Earnings before Interest and Taxes (EBIT) has also grown to INR 2,90,91,195/-, as compared to the previous year’s EBIT 
of INR 1,43,38,600/-, thereby resulting in a 102.88% growth.

Further, during the year under review, the company has earned a Total Comprehensive Income of INR 2,25,01,858/-, as 
compared to INR 87,91,686/- from the previous year. Thereby resulting in a 155.94% growth from the previous year. 

Leveraging on its strong reputation of the brand “FUBA” for producing high quality professional grades products, the company 
continues to attract new customer along with increasing the share of business from the existing customers.

For this, the company has already undertaken a massive expansion drive, wherein a lot of new machinery & working capital 
is being brought in.

Industrial Structure and Development: 

With the increased digitization now-a-days, technology is being created and updated almost every day. People have started 
to use more and more electronics and machineries for their daily assistance than ever before. Such continuous increase in 
demand is resulting in an increase in the supplies, as all manufacturers want to avail the benefit of the surge. PCBs, being the 
nature they are, are the base of any electronic machine or gadget and hence, the demand for the same will only increase in 
the times to come. 

Opportunities, Threats, Risk and Concerns: 

The PCB industry is a very clinical industry and is the basic raw material for the whole electronic industry landscape. And 
since the electronic industry is increasing multifold every year, the PCB market is also increasing in the same proportion. 
Accordingly, there is no dearth of scope and opportunities. 

Under the “Make in India” campaign of the Government of India (‘GOI’), many OEMs have started purchasing domestically 
rather than importing their PCBs from other nations. This trend is expected to increase further in the coming few years. 
However, the volatility of the raw material prices is something that is to be looked at more keenly industry-wide. 

The Industry Association is also in constant touch with the GOI to take steps to promote the domestic PCB industry along with 
the other industries that provide them the raw materials. 

There are many new PCB manufacturers who are entering the market and bringing in new investments and innovations, 
however there are very few, including us, who manufacture professional grade PCBs as per the industry requirements and 
standards.

Outlook: 

One of the objectives identified by the Government is to focus on enhancing the domestic manufacturing landscape with 
a focus on the growth of our export revenue and reduce our import burden. Market research showed that although India 
repeatedly referred to “30%” increase over the past 10–15-year period, the circuit board production base in India is still very 
small. The Government’s “Make in India” campaign has promoted business and has impacted Company in a positive manner. 

With this, the Company now has it’s keen focus on the e-mobility sector. As we are all aware, the government has the aims of 
electrifying all vehicles by 2030. Due to this there is large surge in the demand for e-mobility devices, equipment’s, services 
and infrastructure etc. we are proud to inform that we are currently engaged with many of India’s major Electric vehicle 
manufacturers and are regularly supplying to them. We are confident to become market leader in the sector in the near future.      

To support our aim and vision, the Management has undertaken a massive expansion drive under which many new machineries 
ae being brought in. The activity also entails the infusion of more working capital so as to take the company to greater heights 
and strengths.

The management is fully committed to making the company as a leader in all its product categories.  
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Internal Control Systems and their adequacy: 

The Company has a proper and adequate internal control system to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected 
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and those transactions authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The 
internal control is supplemented by extensive program of internal audits, review by management and documented policies, 
guidelines and procedures. 

Industrial Relations and human resources development: 

The industrial relations have been cordial and satisfactory. We recognize the importance of Human resources and give full 
respect for its development and are committed to the development of our human resource. Efforts continue to make the 
organization a great place to work. 

Cautionary Statement: 

Facts and figure in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis describe the company’s projection and estimates may be 
“forward looking predictions” and it may differ from the results.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

B C C FUBA INDIA LIMITED

(CIN: L51395HP1985PLC012209)

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of B C C FUBA INDIA LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow 
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 
2023 and its Profit (including other comprehensive loss), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements 
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit / loss (including 
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s 
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ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

•	 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all the relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulations precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communications.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in 
the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 (A)	 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(i)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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(ii)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

(iii)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

(iv)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(v)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023, taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(vi)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

(B)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March, 2023 on its financial position in 
its financial statements;

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses;

iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company.

	 iv.	 (i)	 The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) 	 The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iii) 	 Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and 
(d) (ii) contain any material misstatement.

	 v.	 The Company have not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

(C)	  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report u/s 197(16):

	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company 
to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration 
paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 007895N
Vijay Kumar Bhardwaj

Partner
Membership No. 086426

UDIN: 23086426BGTZTU8118
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 16, 2023
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

With reference to the Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023, we report the following:

(i)	 (a)	 (A)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

	 (B) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) 	 As explained to us, the Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the year by the management 
in accordance with a program of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the 
Property, Plant and Equipment at reasonable intervals. According to information and explanations given to us, no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)	 Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations received by us, we report that all 
title deeds of immovable properties of the company are held in the name of the company. However, we express no 
opinion on the validity of the title of the company to these properties.

(d)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or 
intangible assets or both during the year.

(e)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1948 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

(ii) 	 (a)	 The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such 
verification, coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is reasonable. We are informed that 
the discrepancies identified on physical verification of inventory as compared to the book records were not material 
and have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

(b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the company, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, 
from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly statements and returns, furnished to banks 
have also been made available for our verification. We have verified the same on random sampling basis and 
found the same in agreement with books of accounts except as reported in the Note No. 44(h) of the Financial 
Statements as on March 31, 2023. Discrepancies noticed during such verification, were reasonably explained by 
the management.

(iii) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
company, during the year, the company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted 
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships 
or any other parties. Hence, the comments under Para 3(iii) of the Order are not called for.

(iv) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, the 
Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 in relation to investments made.

(v) 	 On the basis of information and explanations given to us and our scrutiny of Company’s records, in our opinion, the 
company has not accepted any deposits or amount, which are deemed to be ‘deposits’. Accordingly, Para 3(v) of the 
Order is not applicable.

(vi)	 Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is not required to maintain cost records as 
specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of the products of the company.

(vii)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company examined by us, undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of excise, VAT, Cess and 
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other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there was no undisputed dues in respect of Goods and 
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, 
Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other Statutory dues were in arrears as on the last day of the financial 
year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date, they became payable.

(b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there was no dues of Goods and Services Tax, Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs or duty of Excise or Value 
Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues, which have not been deposited to the appropriate authorities on account 
of any dispute.

(viii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no transaction to be recorded in the books of 
accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 and also there is no previously unrecorded income and related assets to be recorded in the books of account 
during the year.

(ix)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the payment of interest 
thereon to any lender.

 (b) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government 
or government authority.

(c) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has applied Term Loans for the purpose for which loans were obtained.

(d) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not utilized funds raised on short term basis for long term purposes.

(e) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has no subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, clause (ix)(e) and clause (ix)(f) 
of the order is not applicable on the company.

(x)	 (a)	 The company has not raised any moneys by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public Offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. Hence, comments under Para 3(x)(a) of the Order are not called for.

(b)	 The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures 
(fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year under review. Hence, the comments under Para 3(x)(b) of 
the Order are not called for.

(xi)	 (a)	 Based on the examinations of the books and records of the company and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined Standards on Auditing, we report that no 
fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

 (c) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, company has not received any whistle-blower complaint 
during the year.

(xii)	 According to the information and the explanations provided to us, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, the 
requirements of Para 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

(xiii)	 According to the information and the explanations provided to us, we are of the opinion that all transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been 
disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)	 (a)	 Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the Company has 
an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
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(b)	 We have considered the report of the Internal Auditor of the Company for the period under audit.

(xv)	 According to the information and the explanations provided to us, we are of the opinion that the company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Hence, the comments under Para 3(xv) 
of the Order are not called for.

(xvi)	 (a)	 The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, Para 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)	 The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly, Para 3(xvi)
(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c)	 The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of 
India. Accordingly, Para 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)	 According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group does not have 
any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of Para 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

(xvii)	 The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii)	 There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and based on the information and explanations given 
to us by the management and the response to our communication with the outgoing auditors, there have been no issues, 
objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

(xix)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at 
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on 
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall 
due.

(xx)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not fulfill the criteria as specified under 
section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, 
reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 007895N
Vijay Kumar Bhardwaj

Partner
Membership No. 086426

UDIN: 23086426BGTZTU8118
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 16, 2023



BCC FUBA INDIA LIMITED

48

Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of B C C FUBA INDIA LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as at 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls with, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 007895N
Vijay Kumar Bhardwaj

Partner
Membership No. 086426

UDIN: 23086426BGTZTU8118
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 16, 2023
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
Particulars  Notes  As at  As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2  691,410.52  593,274.14 
Capital work-in-progress 2  14,322.75  59,569.72 
Other Intangible assets 2  -  - 

Financial assets
Investments 3  2,868.04  2,903.64 
Other financial assets 4  15,735.89  20,391.29 
Deferred tax assets (net) 5  21,051.30  - 
Other non-current assets 6  108,569.10  37,213.13 
Total non-current assets  853,957.60  713,351.92 

Current assets
Inventories 7  747,091.99  582,922.30 
Financial assets
Investments 3  199,990.00  - 
Trade receivables 8  1,110,682.02  1,216,685.23 
Cash and cash equivalents 9  1,043.24  5,201.74 
Other bank balances 10  107,772.93  216,023.40 
Other current assets 6  29,953.81  21,138.71 
Total current assets  2,196,533.99  2,041,971.38 

Total assets  3,050,491.59  2,755,323.30 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity
Equity share capital 11  1,531,005.00  1,531,005.00 
Other equity 12  36,511.19  (188,507.39)
Total equity  1,567,516.19  1,342,497.61 

LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13  38,385.22  130,598.07 
Provisions 14  51,496.93  51,686.16 
Total non-current liabilities  89,882.15  182,284.23 

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13  643,452.78  630,492.38 
Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

15  52,618.27  112,109.56 

(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises

15  570,957.43  406,167.75 

Provisions 14  34,749.03  20,453.34 
Income tax liabilities (net) 16  32,201.73  - 
Other current liabilities 17  59,114.01  61,318.44 
Total current liabilities  1,393,093.25  1,230,541.47 

Total liabilities  1,482,975.40  1,412,825.70 

Total equity and liabilities  3,050,491.59  2,755,323.30 

See accompanying notes are forming part of these standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration Number 007895N) Abhinav Bhardwaj        Anurag Gupta

             Director                Director
Vijay Kumar Bhardwaj     DIN: 06785065      DIN: 03629487
(Partner)
Membership Number 086426 Dinesh Kumar Yadav   Narender Kumar Jain
Place: New Delhi Company secretary        Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 16, 2023

Amit Lohia
     Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

Particulars Notes  Year ended  Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

I Revenue from operations 18  2,865,199.16  2,853,534.53 
II Other income 19  32,076.26  17,492.86 
III Total income (I + II)  2,897,275.42  2,871,027.39 

IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 20  1,809,903.00  1,923,466.42 
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in 
progress

21  (86,483.75)  59,103.12 

Employee benefits expense 22  415,120.95  349,174.87 
Finance costs 23  46,333.21  54,288.34 
Depreciation and amortization expense 24  47,611.61  46,239.55 
Other expenses 25  420,211.66  349,657.43 
Total expenses (IV)  2,652,696.68  2,781,929.73 

V Profit before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)  244,578.74  89,097.66 
VI Exceptional Items  -  - 
VII Profit before tax(V+VI)  244,578.74  89,097.66 

VIII Tax Expense:
Current tax 26  35,825.74  - 
Deferred tax 26  (21,363.11)  - 
Total tax expense (VIII)  14,462.63  - 

IX Profit for the period from continuing operations (VII-VIII)  230,116.11  89,097.66 

X Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations  -  - 

XI Tax expense of discontinuing operations  -  - 

XII
Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) 
(X-XI)  -  - 

XIII Profit for the year (IX + XII)  230,116.11  89,097.66 

XIV Other comprehensive income
(i) Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

-  Change in Fair Value of Investment  (35.60)  346.63 
-   Changes in acturial assumptions  (4,750.12)  (1,527.43)

(ii)
Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss

 (311.81)  - 

Other comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year  (5,097.53)  (1,180.80)

XV Total comprehensive income for the year (XIII + XIV)  225,018.58  87,916.86 

Earnings per equity share (EPS) (face value of INR 10 
each) (see note 27)
Basic EPS (in INR)  1.47  0.57 
Diluted EPS (in INR)  1.47  0.57 

See accompanying notes are forming part of these standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration Number 007895N) Abhinav Bhardwaj        Anurag Gupta

             Director                Director
Vijay Kumar Bhardwaj     DIN: 06785065      DIN: 03629487
(Partner)
Membership Number 086426 Dinesh Kumar Yadav   Narender Kumar Jain
Place: New Delhi Company secretary        Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 16, 2023

Amit Lohia
     Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

Particulars Year ended  Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Operating activities
Profit after tax  230,116.11  89,097.66 
Adjustments to reconcile profit after tax to net cash flows:

Income Tax Expense  14,462.63  - 
Interest Income  (4,749.16)  (6,444.74)
Dividend Income  (200.00)  (150.00)
Realised gain on sale of Mutual Fund  (416.30)  (773.17)
Loss/(Gain) on foreign currency transactions and transla-
tion (net)

 12,082.14  (10,124.95)

Depreciation and amortisation expense  47,611.61  46,239.55 
Finance costs  46,333.21  54,288.34 
Trade Receivables W/Off  35,793.83  8,313.47 
Provision for debts  4,742.83  15,868.13 
Profit from operating Activities  385,776.90  196,314.29 

Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables  65,466.55  (152,387.43)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories  (164,169.69)  (44,436.89)
(Increase)/Decrease in other Current asset  (8,815.10)  16,240.82 
(Increase)/Decrease in Non Current Provision  (189.23)  1,695.73 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Finanical Asset  5,077.33  (3,566.39)
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions  9,545.57  (7,999.11)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable  93,216.26  (60,973.09)
Increase/(Decrease) in other liability  (2,204.43)  15,873.70 

 383,704.16  (39,238.37)
Income tax paid  (3,624.01)  - 
Net cash flows from operating activities  380,080.15  (39,238.37)

Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  49,245.06  - 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (221,102.05)  (160,928.41)
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Investment  (199,990.00)  - 
Interest Income  4,327.23  6,612.11 
Dividend Income  200.00  150.00 
Proceeds from sale of investment  330,416.30  365,773.17 
Purchase of investment  (330,000.00)  (365,000.00)
Proceeds from deposits with bank  108,250.47  (216,023.40)
Net cash flows flow investing activities  (258,652.99)  (369,416.53)

Financing activities
Finance Cost  (46,333.21)  (54,288.34)
Repayment of borrowings (net)  (79,252.45)  188,404.72 
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities  (125,585.66)  134,116.38 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  (4,158.50)  (274,538.52)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  5,201.74  279,740.26 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,043.24  5,201.74 

See accompanying notes are forming part of these standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration Number 007895N) Abhinav Bhardwaj        Anurag Gupta

             Director                Director
Vijay Kumar Bhardwaj     DIN: 06785065      DIN: 03629487
(Partner)
Membership Number 086426 Dinesh Kumar Yadav   Narender Kumar Jain
Place: New Delhi Company secretary        Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 16, 2023

Amit Lohia
     Chief Executive Officer
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Note No 1

A	 Corporate Information	

	 B C C FUBA INDIA LIMITED is a Public Listed Company which is incorporated in India (CIN L51395HP1985PLC012209) 
with the objective to manufacturing of Printing Circuit Board. The registered office of the company is located at 4km 
Swarghat Road, Nalagarh-174101.	

B	 Accounting Policy	

1	 Basis of preparation and presentation 	

	 (i) 	 Compliance of Ind AS	

		  The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other 
relevant provisions of the Act. 	

	 (ii)	 Historical cost convention	

		  The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the following:	

		  defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefits; and Certain assets and liabilities measured at fair 
value.	

2	 Use of Estimates and judgment	

	 Preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Ind-AS requires management to make judgment, estimation and 
assumptions that affect application of accounting policy and reporting amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at reporting date of financial statements and the reported amount of profit and Loss account. Example 
of such estimates includes useful life of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, provision for doubtful debts, 
future obligation under employee’s retirement benefit plans and contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ with these 
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on periodic basis. Future results could differ due to these 
estimates and the difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are 
known/materialized.	

	 All Financial information furnished in Indian rupees and values are rounded to nearest in hundred with two decimal points 
except where otherwise stated.	

3	 Revenue from Operation	

	 a) 	 the parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, orally or in accordance with other customary 
business practices) and are committed to perform their respective obligations;	

	 b) 	 the company identifies each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred;	

	 c) 	 the company identifies the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred;	

	 d) 	 the contract has commercial substance (i.e., the risk, timing or amount of the company’s future cash flows is expected 
to change as a result of the contract); and	

	 e) 	 It is probable that the company will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the goods or 
services that will be transferred to the customer. In evaluating whether collectability of an amount of consideration 
is probable, a company shall consider only the customer’s ability and intention to pay that amount of consideration 
when it is due. The amount of consideration to which the company will be entitled may be less than the price stated 
in the contract if the consideration is variable because the company may offer the customer a price concession.	

	 Interest Income	

	 Interest Income is recognized using Effective Interest method as per IND-AS 109 when:	

	 a)	 It is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company; and	

	 b)	 The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; 	
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	 Dividend Income	

	 Dividend is recognized when the company’s right to receive the payment has been established.	

4	 Borrowings 	

	 Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured 
at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized 
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan 
facilities are recognized as transaction costs.	

	 Borrowing Costs	

	 General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended 
use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred	

	 Company capitalizes borrowing cost as part of the cost of a qualifying asset on the commencement date. The 
commencement date for capitalization is the date when the company first meets all of the following condition 	

a) 	 It incurs expenditure for the asset;	

b) 	 It incurs borrowing cost; and	

c)	 It undertakes activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.	

5	 Income Tax 	

a)	 Provision for Taxation is made on the basis of the taxable profits computed for the current accounting year (i.e., 
reporting year) in accordance with the income Tax Act,1961.	

b)	 Deferred Tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing difference, being difference between 
taxable income and accounting income/ expenditure that originate in one period and capable of reversal in one or 
subsequent years(s). Deferred taxes are reviewed for their carrying value at each balance sheet date. 	

	 Tax Rate: - Deferred Tax Rate is an enacted rate provided by the Income Tax Act 1961.	

6	 Employee Benefits	

i) 	 Short Term Employee Benefits: - Short Term Employee Benefits such as short-term compensated absences are 
recognized as an expense on an undiscounted basis in the statement of Profit & Loss of the year in which the related 
service is rendered.	

(ii) 	 Post-Employment Benefits & Other Long-Term Employee Benefits	

	 Defined Contribution Plan	

	 Provident Fund	

	 Employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the company 
make monthly contribution to the regional Provident fund equal to specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary. 
The company has no further obligation under the plan beyond its monthly contributions.	

	 Defined Benefits Plan	

i)	 Gratuity	

	 In accordance with the payment of gratuity Act, 1972, the company provides for gratuity a non-funded defined 
retirement plan covering all employees. To Plan, Subject to provision of the Act, provides a lump sum payment to 
vested employees at the retirement or termination of employment of an amount based on respective employee’s 
salary and the years of employment with the company. The company estimates its liability on ad-hoc basis in the 
interim Financial Reports and on an actuarial valuation basis as at the end of the year carried out an independent 
actuary, and it is charged to profit & loss account in accordance with IND-AS 109.	

ii)	 Leave Benefit	

	 Cost is a defined benefit, and is accrued on ad-hoc basis in the interim financial statement and on actuarial valuation 
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basis as at the end of the year carried out by an independent actuary, and is charged to Profit & Loss account is 
accordance with IND AS-109.	

7	 Property, plant and equipment	

	 Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the fixed 
assets. 	

	 Cost of asset includes the following	

(i)	 Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets	

(ii)	 Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring the site on which it is located if 
recognition criteria are met.	

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.	

	 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value	

	 Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment on Straight Line Method over their estimated useful life of assets. 
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with 
the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.	

	 The estimated useful lives are as mentioned below:	

	 Category of Assets	

	 Particulars		  Estimated Useful Life (years)
	 Freehold Building	 30
	 Computer & Peripherals	 3
	 Furniture & Fixtures	 10
	 Office Equipment	 5
	 Vehicles			   8
	 Plant & Machinery 	 15

	 The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management’s expert which are higher 
than those specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act; 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The 
residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.	

	 The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.	

	 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit 
or loss within other gains/(losses).	

8	 Intangible assets	

	 Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will 
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at historical cost less 
accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any. Amortization methods, useful life and residual values are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date. Company has measured the useful life of intangible asset is 3 years.	

9	 Inventories	

(a)	 Raw Material are Valued according to weighted Average Cost method as prescribed for the valuation of inventory at 
purchase cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. The quantity and valuation of Stock of Raw Material is taken 
as Physical verified, valued and certified by management as at the end of the year.	

(b)	 Finished Goods are valued at lower of the cost or Net realizable Value. Cost for the purpose is determined on the basis 
of absorption costing method. The quality and valuation of finished goods is taken as physical verified, valued and 
certified by management as at the end of the year.	
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(c)	 Stock of Work-In-Progress is valued at the cost of company. The quantity and valuation of inventory of work-in-
progress is taken as physical verified, valued and certified by management as at the end of the year.	

10	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets	

(i)	 The carrying amounts of the assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For assets that 
are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each balance sheet date.	

(ii)	 An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the Statement of profit & loss.	

(iii)	 An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been 
recognized.	

11	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and contingent assets.	

	 Provision is recognized when:	

	 (i)	 The Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,	

	 (ii)	 A probable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation and	

	 (iii)	 A reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.	

	 Provision recognized above which are expected to be settled beyond 12 months are measured at the present value by using 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability and the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognized as interest expenses.	

	 Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet Date.	

12	 Financial Instrument	

i) 	 Financial Assets	

A.	 Initial recognition and measurement: - All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, 
which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale 
of financial assets are recognized using trade date accounting.	

B.	 Subsequent measurement	

a)	 Financial assets carried at amortized cost (AC) A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held 
within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 	

b)	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) A financial asset is measured 
at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Fair Value of 
Equity instrument measured at Fair value through other comprehensive Income has not been measured due to 
non-availability of documents of that company.	

c)	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)financial asset which is not classified in any of the 
above categories are measured at FVTPL.	

C.	 Other Equity Investments: - All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the 
value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’.	
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ii) 	 Financial liabilities	

A. 	 Initial recognition and measurement: All Financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net 
of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
as finance cost.	

B. 	 Subsequent measurement: Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts 
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.	

13	 Foreign Currency	

	 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which 
the Company operates (i.e., Functional Currency). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the 
company’s functional and presentation currency.	

	 Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date 
and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss 
Account.	

	 Option to paragraph 29 of IND AS-21, to recognize unrealized exchange differences arising on transaction of certain long 
term monetary assets and long-term monetary liabilities from foreign currency to functional currency, is ignored. 	

14	 Earnings per Share	

	 In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity shareholders. The 
number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period	

	 In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of 
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.	

15	 Cash Flow Statement	

	 Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions 
of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flow from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information. For the purposes of 
statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash at banks and demand deposits with banks, 
net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand are considered part of the Company’s cash management 
system	

16	 Event after reporting period	

	 Company adjusts the amount recognized in its financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting period and 
not adjust the non-adjusting event.	
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

3  Non Current Investments As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Face Value 
per share

Units/ 
shares

Amount
Units/ 
shares

 Amount 

Fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment in Equity Shares- Unquoted
Other entities
Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited  Rs.10 10000  2,868.04 10000  2,903.64 

Total  10,000  2,868.04  10,000  2,903.64 

Current Investment As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Fair Value through Profit & Loss Units/ 
shares Amount Units/ 

shares Amount

Investment In Mutual Fund-Quoted
Aditya Birla Sun Life Overnight Fund 16585.06  199,990.00  -  - 

 16,585.06  199,990.00  -  - 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

4 Other financial assets
Security deposits (refer note below)  12,877.00  17,702.33 
Deposits with Banks  2,858.89  2,688.96 

 15,735.89  20,391.29 

Note: includes accured interest of INR 421.93 hundred and 167.37 
hundred as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 respectively.)

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

5 Deferred Tax Asset (net)
Deferred Tax Asset  21,051.30  - 

 21,051.30  - 

As At
April 01,2022

Recognised in Profit 
or Loss

Recognised In Other 
comprehensive 

income

As At
March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Asset
MAT Credit  -  35,825.74  -  35,825.74 
Provision Employee Benefit  -  14,396.18  -  14,396.18 

 -  50,221.92  -  50,221.92 

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment  -  28,858.81  28,858.81 
Investments  -  -  311.81  311.81 

 -  28,858.81  311.81  29,170.62 

Deferred Tax Asset (net)  -  21,363.11  (311.81)  21,051.30 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

6 Other Non Current assets
Capital Advances (refer note below)  108,569.10  37,213.13 

 108,569.10  37,213.13 

Other Current Assets As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Balances with Government authorities  1,393.35  3,085.98 
Trade Deposits  750.00  - 
Prepaid expenses  7,166.38  7,526.03 
Advances to vendors  17,581.63  7,526.68 
Advance to Employees  3,062.45  3,000.02 

 29,953.81  21,138.71 

Note: Estimated amounts of contract remaining to be executed on Capital Advance and not provided for Rs.30288.41 
Hundred (P.Y. Rs. 13780.00 Hundred).

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

7 Inventories
Raw materials
- In hand  327,752.29  368,848.17 

- In Transit  157,789.64  48,302.11 

Work-in-progress  100,990.53  85,088.72 

Finished goods  124,064.47  53,482.52 

Stores and spares  36,495.06  27,200.78 

 747,091.99  582,922.30 

As at As at 
8 Trade receivables March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Secured, considered good  -    -   
Unsecured, considered good  11,10,682.02  11,92,883.03 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  4,742.83  39,670.33 
Trade Receivables - credit impaired  -    -   

 11,15,424.85  12,32,553.36 
Expected Credit Loss (Allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Secured, considered good  -    -   
Unsecured, considered good  -    -   
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk  (4,742.83)  (15,868.13)
Trade Receivables - credit impaired  -    -   
Total Trade Receivables  11,10,682.02  12,16,685.23 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

 Trade Receivables aging schedule 
 As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars
Curent but  

not due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
TotalLess than 6 

Months
6 months 
– 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years

Undisputed Trade Re-
ceivables – considered 
good

 754,968.12  204,641.03  62.13  -  1,675.49  149,335.25  1,110,682.02 

Undisputed Trade Re-
ceivables – which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Undisputed Trade 
receivable – credit 
impaired

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disputed Trade receiv-
ables - considered good

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disputed Trade receiv-
ables – which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk 

 -  -  -  -  -  4,742.83  4,742.83 

Disputed Trade receiv-
ables – credit impaired

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 754,968.12  204,641.03  62.13  -  1,675.49  154,078.08  1,115,424.85 

 Trade Receivables aging schedule 
 As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars Curent but  
not due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
TotalLess than 6 

Months
6 months 
– 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

Undisputed Trade Re-
ceivables – considered 
good

 574,631.58  274,118.73  37.85  16,090.41  189,546.95  138,457.51  1,192,883.03 

Undisputed Trade Re-
ceivables – which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Undisputed Trade 
receivable – credit 
impaired

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disputed Trade receiv-
ables - considered good

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disputed Trade receiv-
ables – which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk 

 -  -  -  -  -  39,670.33  39,670.33 

Disputed Trade receiv-
ables – credit impaired

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 574,631.58  274,118.73  37.85  16,090.41  189,546.95  178,127.84  1,232,553.36 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

 As At March, 31 
2023

 As At March, 31 
2022

9 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- In current account  331.73  833.59 
Cash on hand  711.51  4,368.15 

 1,043.24  5,201.74 

 As At March, 31 
2023

 As At March, 31 
2022

10 Other Bank Balances
Current
Deposits with Banks (with original maturity  of more than 3 months but less 
than 12 Months)

 107,772.93  201,023.40 

Deposits with Banks (with original maturity  of more than 12 months but 
current of less than 3 months)

 -  15,000.00 

 107,772.93  216,023.40 

 Equity shares 
 As At March, 

31 2023
 As At March, 

31 2022
11 Share capital
(a) Authorised

20000000 equity shares of INR 10 each  
(Previous year 20000000 equity shares of INR 10 each)

 2,000,000.00  2,000,000.00 

(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 
15310050 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up 
(Previous year 15310050 equity shares of INR 10 each)

 1,531,005.00  1,531,005.00 

 1,531,005.00  1,531,005.00 
(c) Par Value of per Equity Share  10.00  10.00 

(d) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Number Amount Number Amount

Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the 
year 15310050  1,531,005.00 15310050  1,531,005.00 
Add : Issued during the year  -  -  -  - 
Less- No. of Shares bought back  -  -  -  - 
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 15310050  1,531,005.00 15310050  1,531,005.00 

(e) Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares 
is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to 
receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in pro-
portion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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(f) Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Numbers % holding Numbers % holding 
Equity shares
Vishal Tayal  1,117,084 7.30%  1,117,084 7.30%
Parmod Kumar Gupta  167,000 1.09%  917,000 5.99%
Manju Bhardwaj  775,513 5.07%  775,513 5.07%
Abhinav Bhardwaj  2,250,000 14.70%  1,500,000 9.80%
Dipti  1,115,556 7.29%  1,115,556 7.29%

 6,380,535 35.44%  6,380,535 35.44%

(g) The Company has neither reserved shares for issue under options under contract nor any commitments for sale of shares 
or disinvestment. 

(h) For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:
(i)    No shares are  issued other than for cash pursuant to contracts.
(ii)   No shares are shares allotted as fully paid-up by way of bonus shares.
(iii)  No shares were bought back.

(i) There are no convertible securities.

(j) No calls are unpaid(including directors and officers)

(k) No forfeited shares (original paid amount)

(l) Shares held by each promoter:

As at March 31, 2023

S.No Promoter Name Number of shares held  % of total shares  % change during the year 
1 Lokesh Tayal  163,534 1.07% 0.00%
2 Vishal Tayal      1,117,084 7.30% 0.00%
3 Parmod Kumar Gupta  167,000 1.09% -81.79%
4 Manju Bhardwaj  775,513 5.07% 0.00%
5 Kuldip Bhardwaj  91,034 0.59% 0.00%
6 Abhinav Bhardwaj  2,250,000 14.70% 50.00%

As at March 31, 2022

S.No Promoter Name Number of shares held  % of total shares  % change during the year 
1 Lokesh Tayal  163,534 1.07% -85.95%
2 Vishal Tayal      1,117,084 7.30% 0.00%
3 Parmod Kumar Gupta  917,000 5.99% 0.00%
4 Manju Bhardwaj  775,513 5.07% 0.00%
5 Kuldip Bhardwaj  91,034 0.59% 0.00%
6 Abhinav Bhardwaj  1,500,000 9.80% 87.50%

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

12 Other equity

Securities premium reserve (refer note below)  906,152.20  906,152.20 
Retained earnings (refer note below)  (869,641.01)  (1,094,659.59)

 36,511.19  (188,507.39)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
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As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

12.1 Securities premium reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  906,152.20  906,152.20 
Less : Addition/(deduction)  -  - 
Balance at the end of the year  906,152.20  906,152.20 

12.2 Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  (1,094,659.59)  (1,169,000.76)
Profit for the year  230,116.11  89,097.66 
Other comprehensive income  (5,097.53)  (14,756.49)
Balance at the end of the year  (869,641.01)  (1,094,659.59)

The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders, is determined based on the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above are not distributable in entirety. 

12.3 Statement of Change in Equity

Particulars Reserve and Surplus Equity 
instruments 

through other 
comprehensive 

income

TotalSecurities 
Premium 

Other 
Reserve

Retained Earnings

As at 31st March, 2023 Profit & Loss Actuarial 
Gain/(Loss)

Balance at the beginning of the 
reporting period  906,152.20  -  (1,079,903.11)  (16,660.13)  1,903.64  (188,507.39)

Profit & Loss Account  -  -  230,116.11  -  -  230,116.11 
Remeasurment of Actuarial 
Gain/(Loss)  -  -  -  (4,750.12)  -  (4,750.12)

Increase/(Decrease) In Fair 
Value of Investment  -  -  -  -  (35.60)  (35.60)

Tax Expense Related to OCI  -  -  -  -  (311.81)  (311.81)
Dividends  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Balance at the end of the 
reporting period  906,152.20  -  (849,787.00)  (21,410.25)  1,556.23  36,511.19 

Particulars Reserve and Surplus Equity 
instruments 

through other 
comprehensive 

income

TotalSecurities 
Premium 

Other 
Reserve

Retained Earnings

As at 31st March, 2022 Profit & Loss Actuarial 
Gain/(Loss)

Balance at the beginning of the 
reporting period  906,152.20  -  (1,167,953.55)  (15,132.70)  509.80  (276,424.25)

Adjustment  -  -  (1,047.21)  -  1,047.21  - 
Restated balance at the 
beginning of the reporing 
period

 906,152.20  -  (1,169,000.76)  (15,132.70)  1,557.01  (276,424.25)

Profit & Loss Account  -  -  89,097.66  -  -  89,097.66 
Remeasurment of Actuarial 
Gain/(Loss)  -  -  -  (1,527.43)  -  (1,527.43)

Increase In Fair Value of 
Investment  -  -  -  -  346.63  346.63 

Dividends  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Balance at the end of the 
reporting period  906,152.20  -  (1,079,903.11)  (16,660.13)  1,903.64  (188,507.39)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

13 Borrowings
Non-Current
Secured
SBI Term Loan (Refer Note a, b, c)  54,273.22  158,318.92 
Current maturities of long-term debt  (15,888.00)  (27,720.85)

 38,385.22  130,598.07 

a. Interest Rate of Loan is 8.8% P.A.
b. Period Of Loan is given below

Woking Capital Term Loan has tenure of 48 months including moratorium of 12 Months
Woking Capital Term Loan GECL 1.0 has tenure of 60 months including moratorium of 24 Months

c. Loan from SBI is primary secured by hypothecation of entire Current Assets of the firm, present & future, including stocks, 
stores, finished goods & receivable and 1st charge  on Plant and Machinery and collateral secured as Registered Mort-
gage of company Land & Building and  Personal Guarantee of Directors namely Sh. Pramod Kumar Gupta, Sh. Vishal Tayal 
and Sh. Abhinav Bhardwaj and the Shareholders namely Manju Bhardwaj and Lokesh Tayal.
There is no default in repayment of any loan or interest thereon. 

Current Borrowings

Secured
Cash Credit Facilities from Bank (refer note d, e)  431,814.78  341,021.53 

Unsecured Loan
From Others (refer note f, g)  195,750.00  261,750.00 

Current maturities of long-term debt (refer Note 13.1)  15,888.00  27,720.85 

Total  643,452.78  630,492.38 

d. Rate of Interest is 9.8% P.A.

e. Cash Credit facility provided by State bank of india is primary secured by hypothecation of entire Current Assets of the 
firm, present & future, including stocks, stores, finished goods & receivable and 1st charge on Plant and Machinery and 
collateral secured as Registered Mortgage of company Land & Building and  Personal Guarantee of Directors namely Sh. 
Pramod Kumar Gupta, Sh. Vishal Tayal and Sh. Abhinav Bhardwaj and the Shareholders namely Manju Bhardwaj and 
Lokesh Tayal.

f. Borrwings from others carry an simple interest rate of 7.5% p.a. and are repayable on demand.

g. There is no default in repayment of any loan or interest thereon. 

13.1 Repayable Schedule As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

2022-2023  -  27,720.85 
2023-2024  15,888.00  28,217.92 
2024-2025  18,988.06  37,285.44 
2025-2026  11,664.00  29,436.49 
2026-2027  7,733.16  24,969.57 
2027-2028  -  10,688.65 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

As at As at 
14 Provisions March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Leave Encashment  8,560.55  7,577.17 
Provision for gratuity  42,936.38  44,108.99 

 51,496.93  51,686.16 
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity   22,976.37  10,226.18 
Leave Encashment  4,357.74  3,335.24 
Bonus  7,414.92  6,891.92 

 34,749.03  20,453.34 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

15 Trade payables

Current
i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  52,618.27  112,109.56 
ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

 570,957.43  406,167.75 

 623,575.70  518,277.31 

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 
supplier at the end of each accounting year

 52,618.27  112,109.56 

(b) interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and the amount of payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day

 8.81  200.28 

(c) interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment other 
than the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006

 - 

(d) interest accrued and remaining unpaid  8.81  200.28 

(e) further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years 
for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 - 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis 
of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
 15.1  Trade Payable aging schedule 

 As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars Unbilled 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment TotalLess than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years

Total outstanding dues of 
micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 -  52,618.27  -  -  -  52,618.27 

Total outstanding dues of 
creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small 
enterprises

 2,746.00  503,994.20  12,833.50  1,313.57  50,070.16  570,957.43 

Disputed dues of micro 
enterprises and small 
enterprises  -  -  -  -  - 

 - 

Disputed dues of creditors 
other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises  -  -  -  -  - 

 - 

 2,746.00  556,612.47  12,833.50  1,313.57  50,070.16  623,575.70 

 Trade Payable aging schedule 
 As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars Unbilled 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment TotalLess than 1 

year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total outstanding dues of 
micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 -  112,109.56  -  -  -  112,109.56 

Total outstanding dues of 
creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small 
enterprises

 9,481.98  337,737.42  1,313.57  57,634.78  -  406,167.75 

Disputed dues of micro 
enterprises and small 
enterprises

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disputed dues of creditors 
other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total  9,481.98  449,846.98  1,313.57  57,634.78  -  518,277.31 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

16 Income tax liablities
Provision for Income Tax (net of advance tax)  32,201.73  - 

 32,201.73  - 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

17 Other Current liabilities

Statutory Dues  11,071.27  15,363.52 
Others - Expenses Payable  47,117.47  45,854.92 
Advance From Contract Liabilities  925.27  - 
Payable to Staff  -  100.00 

 59,114.01  61,318.44 

Year ended Year ended
18 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 18.1 Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of products  2,858,901.90  2,849,431.67 

Total  2,858,901.90  2,849,431.67 

(a) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers: 

Type of goods/services Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Sale Of Printed Circuits Board  2,858,901.90  2,849,431.67 
Total revenue from contracts with customers  2,858,901.90  2,849,431.67 

India  2,858,901.90  2,849,431.67 
Outside India  -  - 
Total revenue from contracts with customers  2,858,901.90  2,849,431.67 

(b) Contract balances

Trade receivables  1,110,682.02  1,216,685.23 
Contract liabilities  925.27  - 

Trade receivables are non interest bearing. Credit period generally falls in the range of 60 to 90 days.
Contract liabilities consist of short-term advances received to supply goods from customer.

(c) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price  2,945,284.46  2,898,076.60 
Adjustments:
Sales return  (86,382.56)  (48,644.93)
Revenue from contracts with customers  2,858,901.90  2,849,431.67 

(d) Performance obligations 
Obligation of the Company is to provide products as per specification agreed with the customer, if in case there is any 
deviation then product supplied will be replaced with new product.

 18.2 Other operating revenues
Other operating revenues

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Scrap sales  6,297.26  4,102.86 
Total  6,297.26  4,102.86 

Total (18.1 +18.2)  2,865,199.16  2,853,534.53 
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19 Other income Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest income 
Interest income earned on:
- Interest Income from deposits with Bank  3,743.21  5,364.67 
- Interest received on income tax refund  116.15  23.10 
- Other interest income  889.80  1,056.97 

 4,749.16  6,444.74 
Other gains and losses
Dividend income  200.00  150.00 
Realised gain on sale of Mutual Fund  416.30  773.17 
Gain on foreign currency transactions and translation (net)  -  10,124.95 
Insurance Claim  24,994.95  - 
Discount Income  1,715.85  - 

 27,327.10  11,048.12 
 32,076.26  17,492.86 

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

20  Cost of raw material consumed 

 Inventory at the beginning of the year  368,848.16  316,885.91 
 Add: Purchases  1,768,807.13  1,975,428.67 

 2,137,655.29  2,292,314.58 
 Less: inventory at the end of the year  (327,752.29)  (368,848.16)

 1,809,903.00  1,923,466.42 

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

21 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

Opening Stock:
Finished goods  53,482.52  85,320.96 
Work in progress  85,088.73  112,353.40 

 138,571.25  197,674.36 

Closing Stock:
Finished goods  124,064.47  53,482.52 
Work in progress  100,990.53  85,088.72 

 225,055.00  138,571.24 
 Net decrease/(increase)  (86,483.75)  59,103.12 

 * Include Expense of INR 23360.00 Hundred Recognised on account of net reliasable value for the year ended on March 31, 
2023. 

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

22 Employee benefits expense 

1 Salaries and wages  370,725.89  308,549.81 
2 Contribution to provident and other fund  25,687.53  23,099.64 
3 Gratuity Expense  8,545.77  7,647.33 
4 Staff welfare expenses  10,161.76  9,878.09 

 415,120.95  349,174.87 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

23 Finance Costs 

1 Interest expense term loan  1,980.16  6,740.29 
2 Interest expense on Working Capital Loan  14,924.11  15,943.06 
3 Interest on Unsecured Loan  18,417.05  20,369.43 
4 LC Charges  5,453.81  6,099.35 
6 Bank Charges  2,779.17  2,422.99 
7 Interest on delayed payment to MSME  8.81  200.28 
8 Other finance costs  2,770.10  2,512.94 

 46,333.21  54,288.34 

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

24 Depreciation and amortisation expense
1 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  47,611.61  46,239.55 
2 Amortisation of intangible assets  -  - 

 47,611.61  46,239.55 

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

25 Other expenses
Packing materials  8,609.40  6,656.60 
Consumption of stores and spares  11,401.78  10,940.15 
Trade receviable written off  35,793.83  8,313.47 
Power and fuel  128,904.42  129,486.98 
Rent  6,100.00  4,895.00 
Repair and maintenance

- Machinery  50,680.23  48,177.49 
- Building  8,725.06  5,772.10 
- others  6,252.75  4,869.85 

Insurance  3,316.41  1,938.83 
Rates and taxes  288.39  287.41 
Communication expenses  1,604.98  1,489.83 
Travelling and conveyance  12,162.63  6,422.91 
Printing and stationery  1,527.02  2,129.20 
Freight cartage and other distribution cost  22,960.50  23,577.74 
Technical Charges  8,400.00  4,500.00 
Legal and professional charges  19,045.75  18,897.98 
Payments to auditors (Refer note below)  2,000.00  3,300.00 
Job Work Charges  36,334.86  11,846.49 
Listing Fees  3,000.00  3,000.00 
Provision for debts which have significant increase in credit risk  4,742.83  15,868.13 
Pollution Control Expenses  2,648.93  2,588.08 
Foreign Exchange fluctuation Loss (Net)  12,082.14  - 
Miscellaneous expenses  33,629.75  34,699.22 

Total  420,211.66  349,657.43 

Note:
Payments to the auditors (excluding input tax)

a) Audit Fee  2,000.00  2,000.00 
b) Other Services  -  1,300.00 

 2,000.00  3,300.00 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

Year ended 
March 31, 2023

Year ended 
March 31, 2022

26 Tax Expense
Current tax  35,825.74  -
Deferred tax  (21,363.11)  -
Total  14,462.63  -

26.1 Income tax recognised in the Statement of profit and loss

Current tax
In respect of the current year  35,825.74  - 
In respect of the previous year  -  - 

 35,825.74  - 
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year  (21,363.11)  - 
Impact of change in tax rate  -  - 

 (21,363.11)  - 

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year  14,462.63  - 

Tax expense on continuing operations  14,462.63  - 
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year  14,462.63  - 

The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax from continuing and discontinuing operations  244,578.74  89,097.66 

Statutory income tax rate 16.69% 16.69%
Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate  40,825.08  14,872.18 
Effect of permanent disallowance  -  - 
Effect of unused tax losses and tax offsets not recognised as deferred tax 
assets

 -  - 

Other adjustments  (26,362.45)  (14,872.18)
 14,462.63  - 

26.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Change in Fair Value of Investment  311.81  - 

Total income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income  311.81  - 

27 Earning Per Share
Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding for the year. Diluted earnings per equity share has been computed using the weighted average 
number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

Year ended 
March 31, 2023

Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Total comprehensive income for the year  225,018.58  87,916.86
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year

 15,310,050  15,310,050

Nominal value of equity share  10  10
Basic earnings per share  1.47  0.57
Diluted earnings per share  1.47  0.57
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

28 Financial Instruments

Financial risk management objective and policies
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional 
information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis 
of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, 
financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2 and Note 3.

Financial assets and liabilities:
The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts, are set out below:

March 31, 2023 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total carrying 
value Total fair value

Financial assets
Investments  199,990.00  2,868.04  -  202,858.04  202,858.04 
Trade receivables  -  -  1,110,682.02  1,110,682.02  1,110,682.02 
Cash and cash equivalents  -  -  1,043.24  1,043.24  1,043.24 
Other bank balances  -  -  107,772.93  107,772.93  107,772.93 
Other non current financial assets  -  -  15,735.89  15,735.89  15,735.89 
Total  199,990.00  2,868.04  1,235,234.08  1,438,092.12  1,438,092.12 

Financial liabilities
Borrowings  -  -  681,838.00  681,838.00  681,838.00 
Trade payables  -  -  623,575.70  623,575.70  623,575.70 
Total  -  -  1,305,413.70  1,305,413.70  1,305,413.70 

March 31, 2022 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total carrying 
value Total fair value

Financial assets
Investment  -  2,903.64  2,903.64  2,903.64 
Trade receivables  -  -  1,216,685.23  1,216,685.23  1,216,685.23 
Cash and cash equivalents  -  -  5,201.74  5,201.74  5,201.74 
Other Bank Balances  -  -  216,023.40  216,023.40  216,023.40 
Other non current financial assets  -  -  20,391.29  20,391.29  20,391.29 
Total  -  2,903.64  1,458,301.66  1,461,205.30  1,461,205.30 

Financial liabilities
Borrowings  -  -  761,090.45  761,090.45  761,090.45 
Trade payables  -  -  518,277.31  518,277.31  518,277.31 
Total  -  -  1,279,367.76  1,279,367.76  1,279,367.76 

Risk management objectives
 

Risk management framework

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

-	 Liquidity risk;

-	 Interest rate risk; and

-	 Credit risk

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework.
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The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems 
are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its 
training, standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees 
understand their roles and obligations.

The board of directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management policies and 
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The 
board of directors is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of 
risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the board of directors.

Financial risk

The Company’s Board approved financial risk policies comprise liquidity, currency, interest rate and counterparty risk. The 
Company does not engage in speculative treasury activity but seeks to manage risk and optimize interest through proven 
financial instruments.

a)	 Liquidity

	 The Company requires funds both for short-term operational needs as well as for long-term investment programme mainly 
in growth projects.

	 The Company remains committed to maintaining a healthy liquidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening our 
balance sheet. The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on the remaining period from the date of 
balance sheet to the contractual maturity date is given in the table below. The figures reflect the contractual undiscounted 
cash obligation of the Company.

 As at March 31, 2023
Financial liabilities <1 year 1-2 Years 2-5 Years > 5 Years Total
Borrowings  643,452.78  18,988.06  19,397.16  -  681,838.00 
Trade payables  623,575.70  -  -  -  623,575.70 
 Total  1,267,028.48  18,988.06  19,397.16  -  1,305,413.70 

 As at March 31, 2022
Financial liabilities <1 year 1-2 Years 2-5 Years > 5 Years Total
Borrowings  630,492.38  28,217.92  102,380.15  -  761,090.45 
Trade payables  518,277.31  -  -  -  518,277.31 
 Total  1,148,769.69  28,217.92  102,380.15  -  1,279,367.76 

b) Interest rate risk
The exposure of the Company’s financial assets to interest rate risk is as follows:

As at Total Floating rate 
financial asset

Fixed rate 
financial asset

Non-interest 
bearing financial 

asset
Financials assets March 31,2023  1,438,092.12  202,858.04  110,631.82  1,124,602.26 
Financials assets March 31,2022  1,461,205.30  2,903.64  218,712.36  1,239,589.30 

The exposure of the Company’s financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

As at Total
Floating rate 

financial 
liabilities

Fixed rate 
financial 
liabilities

Non-interest 
bearing financial 

liabilities
Financial liabilities March 31,2023  1,305,413.70  -  681,838.00  623,575.70 
Financial liabilities March 31,2022  1,279,367.76  -  761,090.45  518,277.31 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
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c) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the 
Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient 
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company regularly 
monitors its counterparty limits by reviewing the outstanding balance and ageing of the same.
Possible credit risk Credit risk management
Credit risk related to trade receivables Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or 

counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, 
and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers 
and investment securities. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, 
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of 
customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course 
of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and 
impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and 
other receivables and investments. The loans advanced by the company carries 
interest and are granted to its employees after evaluating the purpose.

Moreover, given the diverse nature of the Company’s businesses trade receivables 
are spread over a number of customers with no significant concentration of 
credit risk. 

Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the 
Company’s normal terms and conditions of business. These terms and conditions 
are determined on a case to case basis with reference to the customer’s credit 
quality and prevailing market conditions. Receivables that are classified as ‘past 
due’ in the above tables are those that have not been settled within the terms and 
conditions that have been agreed with that customer.

Credit risk related to bank balances Company holds bank balances with reputed and creditworthy banking institution 
within the approved exposures limit of each bank. None of the Company’s cash 
equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. 

The carrying value of the financial assets other than cash represents the maximum credit exposure. The Company’s 
maximum exposure to credit risk at March 31, 2023 is INR 14,18,776.68  and at March 31, 2022 is INR 14,33,542.33

d) Foreign currency risk
The company is exposed to currency risk on account of import and export of goods or services from other countries. The 
functional currency of the company is Indian Rupee. Considering the countries and economic enviornment from which the 
company imports, its operations are subject to risks arising from the fluctuations primarily in the US dollar. Currency risk 
exposure is evaluated and managed through advance payments for procurements.

 Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2023 

 As at  
March 31, 2022 

Financial Liabilites USD Amount USD Amount
Trade Payables  5,328.25  438,072.52  3,492.98  265,151.97 

1% Movement 
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

 442,469.94  433,708.16  267,803.49  262,500.45 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
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29	 Employee Benefits

	 The Company participates in defined contribution and benefit schemes and the amount charged to the statement of profit 
or loss is the total of contributions payable in the year.

a.	 Defined contribution plan

	 The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and employee state insurance scheme to a defined contribution 
retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Company’s contribution to the Employees Provident Fund and 
Employees State Insurance scheme is deposited with the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Under the scheme, 
the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the 
benefits.

	 During the year, the Company has recognised INR 20.82 lacs (Previous year INR 18.79 lacs) for Employer’s contributions 
to the Provident Fund and INR 4.89 lacs (Previous year INR 4.31 lacs) for Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contribution payable to the plan by the Company is at the rate specified in rules to 
the scheme.

b.	 Defined benefit plan – Gratuity plan

	 The Company’s contribution towards its gratuity liability is a defined benefit retirement plan.

	 The gratuity liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death of an employee. The aforesaid liability is 
calculated on the basis of fifteen days salary (i.e. last drawn qualifying salary) for each completed year of service subject 
to completion of five years service.

i.	 Risks associated with Plan Provisions

	 Risks associated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks. These risks are:- (i) investment risk, (ii) interest risk (discount 
rate risk), (iii) mortality risk and (iv) salary risk.

	 Interest risk (discount rate risk)

	 A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability

	 Mortality risk

	 The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan 
participants.

	 For this report we have used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) ultimate table.

	 A change in mortality rate will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.

	 Salary risk

	 The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan 
participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in 
salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.

	 In respect of the plan in India, the most recent acturial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2023 by Ashok Kumar Garg. The present value of defined benefit 
obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit 
method.

ii. Principal actuarial assumptions:
Principle actuarial assumption used to determine the present value of the benefit obligation are as follows:

S. No. Particulars Refer note below Year Ended March 31, 2023 Year Ended March 31, 2022

i. Discount rate (p.a.) 1 7.25% 7.25%
ii. Salary escalation rate 

(p.a.)
2 5.00% 5.00%

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

Notes
1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date 

for the estimated term of obligations.

2 The expected return is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the 
fund during the estimated term of the obligations.

3 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors.

Year Ended March 31, 2023 Year Ended March 31, 2022
Demographic assumptions:

1 Retirement age 58 years 58 years
2 Mortality rate 100% of IALM (2012-14) 100% of IALM (2012-14)
3 Average Outstanding service of Employee upto retirement 14.3 15.8

4 No of Employees 65 65
5 Attrition rate

- Up to 30 Years        5.00% 5.00%
- From 31 to 44 years 3.00% 3.00%
- Above 44 years       2.00% 2.00%

The following tables set out amounts recognised in the Company’s financial statements:

a. Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of these defined benefits plans are as follows:

S. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2023 Year Ended March 31, 2022

A Current service cost  4,606.47  3,960.64 
B Net interest expenses  3,939.30  3,686.69 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in 
Statement of Profit or Loss 

 8,545.77  7,647.33 

b. Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:

S. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2023 Year Ended March 31, 2022

A Acturial (gains)/losses due to change in demographic 
assumptions

 N.A.  N.A. 

B Acturial (gains)/losses due to change in financial 
assumptions

 -  (846.04)

C Acturial (gains)/losses due to change in experience 
variance

 3,395.27  2,048.82 

Component of defined benefit costs recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income

 3,395.27  1,202.78 

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the ‘Employee benefits expense ‘ in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in the other comprehensive income.
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c. The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of its defined benefits plans 
as follows:

S. 
No.

Particulars As At March 31,2023 As At March 31,2022

A Present value of defined benefit obligation  65,912.75  54,335.17 
B Fair value of plan assets  -  - 

Surplus/(deficit)  65,912.75  54,335.17 

d. Movement in the fair value of the defined benefit obligation:

S. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2023 Year Ended March 31, 2022

A. Opening defined benefit obligation  54,335.17  50,850.85 
B Current service cost  4,606.47  3,960.64 
C Interest cost  3,939.30  3,686.69 
D Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation  3,395.27  1,202.78 
E Benefits paid  (363.45)  (5,365.78)
F Acquisition adjustment  -  - 

Closing defined benefit obligations 
(G=A+B+C+D+E+F)  65,912.75  54,335.17 

The Company expects to make a contribution of INR 6.18 lacs to the defined benefit plan during the next financial year.

e. Sensitivity Analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary 
increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. 

Particulars As At March 31,2023 As At March 31,2022
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount Rate (-/+0.5%)  
(% change compared to base due to 
sensitivity)

 6.00  5.00  6.00  6.00 

Salary Growth Rate (-/+0.5%)  
(% change compared to base due to 
sensitivity)

 5.00  6.00  6.00  6.00 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is 
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated 
using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the 
defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance sheet.
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years. 

f. The expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

As At March 31,2023 As At March 31,2022

Expected cash flows over the next
0 to 1 Year  22,976.37  10,226.18 
1 to 5 Year  11,580.22  14,764.19 
More than 5 years  31,356.16  29,344.80 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

g. Actuarial assumptions for compensated absences

S. 
No.

Particulars Refer 
note 

below

Year Ended March 31, 2023 Year Ended March 31, 2022

i Discount rate (p.a.) 1 7.25% 7.25%
ii Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 3 5.00% 5.00%

Notes

1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for 
the estimated term of obligations.

2 The compensated absences plan is unfunded.

3 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors.

c. Defined benefit plan – Leave Encashment

i. Risks associated with Plan Provisions

Risks associated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks. These risks are:- (i) investment risk, (ii) interest risk 
(discount rate risk), (iii) mortality risk and (iv) salary risk. 
Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount 

rate determined by reference to Government Bonds Yield. If plan liability is funded 
and return on plan assets is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk (discount rate risk) A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability

Mortality risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to 
the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants. For this report we have used 
Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) ultimate table.
A change in mortality rate will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption 
of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase 
of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to 
determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan’s liability. 

In respect of the plan in India, the most recent acturial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2023 by Ashok Kumar Garg. The present value of defined benefit 
obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit 
method.

ii. Principal actuarial assumptions:
Principle actuarial assumption used to determine the present value of the benefit obligation are as follows:

S. No. Particulars Refer note below Year Ended March 
31, 2023

Year Ended March 
31, 2022

i. Discount rate (p.a.) 1 7.25% 7.25%
ii. Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 2 5.00% 5.00%
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

Notes
1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet 

date for the estimated term of obligations.

2 The expected return is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments 
of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations.

3 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors.

Year Ended March 
31, 2023

Year Ended March 
31, 2022

iii. Demographic assumptions:
1 Retirement age 58 years 58 years
2 Mortality rate 100% of IALM 

(2012-14)
100% of IALM 

(2012-14)
3 Average Outstanding service of Employee upto retirement 14.3 15.8

4 No of Employees 65 65
5 Attrition rate

- Up to 30 Years        5.00% 5.00%
- From 31 to 44 years 3.00% 3.00%
- Above 44 years       2.00% 2.00%

The following tables set out amounts recognised in the Company’s financial statements:
a. Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of these defined benefits plans are as 

follows:

S. No. Particulars Year Ended March 
31, 2023

Year Ended March 
31, 2022

A Current service cost  2,085.44  1,730.51 
B Net interest expenses  791.15  639.08 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of 
Profit or Loss 

 2,876.59  2,369.59 

b. Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:

S. No. Particulars Year Ended March 
31, 2023

Year Ended March 
31, 2022

A Acturial (gains)/losses due to change in demographic assumptions  N.A.  N.A. 
B Acturial (gains)/losses due to change in financial assumptions  -  (152.61)
C Acturial (gains)/losses due to change in experience variance  1,354.85  477.26 

Component of defined benefit costs recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income

 1,354.85  324.65 

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the ‘Employee benefits expense ‘ in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in the other comprehensive income.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

c. The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of its defined benefits 
plans as follows:

S. No. Particulars As At March 
31,2023

As At March 
31,2022

A Present value of defined benefit obligation  12,918.29  10,912.41 
B Fair value of plan assets  -  - 

Surplus/(deficit)  12,918.29  10,912.41 

d. Movement in the fair value of the defined benefit obligation:

S. No. Particulars Year Ended March 
31, 2023

Year Ended March 
31, 2022

A. Opening defined benefit obligation  10,912.41  8,814.91 
B Current service cost  2,085.44  1,730.51 
C Interest cost  791.15  639.08 
D Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation  1,354.85  324.65 
E Benefits paid  (2,225.55)  (596.73)

Closing defined benefit obligations (G=A+B+C+D+E+F)  12,918.29  10,912.41 

e. Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary 
increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. 

Particulars As At March 31,2023 As At March 31,2022
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount Rate (-/+0.5%)  
(% change compared to base 
due to sensitivity)

 7.00  6.00  7.00  6.00 

Salary Growth Rate 
(-/+0.5%)  
(% change compared to base 
due to sensitivity)

 6.00  7.00  6.00  7.00 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is 
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated 
using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the 
defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance sheet.
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years. 

f. Actuarial assumptions for compensated absences

S. 
No.

Particulars Refer note below Year Ended March 
31, 2023

Year Ended March 
31, 2022

i Discount rate (p.a.) 1 7.25% 7.25%
ii Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 3 5.00% 5.00%

Notes

1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date 
for the estimated term of obligations.
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2 The leave encashment plan is unfunded.
3 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 

factors.

30 Ratio analysis and its elements
 Ratio  Numerator  Denominator March 

31, 2023
March 

31, 2022
 % 

Change 
 Remarks 

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities  1.58  1.659 -4.98%
Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt (Current 

+ Non Current)
Shareholder’s Equity 
(Paid up Capital + 
Reserve & Surplus)

 0.45  0.57 -21.44% During the year, 
Company prepays 
the long-term debt.

Return on Equity 
ratio

Net Profits after 
taxes – Preference 
Dividend

Average Shareholder’s 
Equity (Paid up Capital 
+ Reserve & Surplus)

 0.15  0.07 125.39% The Variation in ratios 
is because during the 
year the company 
has reduced their 
consumptions of raw 
material.

Net Profit ratio Net Profit after Tax Net sales = Total sales - 
sales return

 0.08  0.03 157.22%

Net Capital 
Turnover Ratio

Net sales = sales 
- sales return

Average Working capital 
= Current assets – 
Current liabilities

 2.37  3.60 -34.18% During the year, 
Company has 
reduced their net 
capital turnover ratio 
due to early recovery 
of trade receivables.

Inventory Turnover 
ratio

Sales Average Closing Balance 
of Inventory

 4.31  5.09 -15.34%

Trade Receivable 
Turnover Ratio

Net Credit Sales Average Closing Balance 
of Trade Receivable

 2.46  2.49 -1.09%

Trade Payable 
Turnover Ratio

Net Credit 
Purchase

Average Closing Balance 
of Trade Payables

 3.13  3.59 -12.69%

Return on Capital 
Employed

Earnings before 
interest and taxes

Capital Employed = 
Shareholder’s Equity 
(Paid up Capital + 
Reserve & Surplus) + 
Total Debt

 0.12  0.07 76.98% Due to change in 
business enviorment, 
the company 
managed to improve 
its Competitiveness, 
which caused 
increase in the return 
on capital employed.

Return on 
Investment

Dividend Income Cost of Investment  0.20  0.15 33.33%

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

31 Related Party Disclosures
In accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind- AS) – 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ the names 
of the related party where control exists/able to exercise significant influence along with the aggregate transactions / year 
end balances with them.

A.  List of Related Parties  

 Name 
Key Management Personnel (KMP)  Abhinav Bhardwaj  - Director

 Anurag Gupta  - Director
 Mona Tayal - Director
 Vishal Tayal - Director
 Narendra Kumar Jain - Chief Financial Officer
 Dinesh Kumar Yadav - Company Secretary
 Amit Lohia - Chief Executive officer

Enterprise over which KMP excerise 
significant influence

 Electrospark Enclosuers Private Limited  

B. Transactions during the year

Particulars Others

a. Remuneration Paid
Abhinav Bhardwaj  15,300.00 
Narendra Kumar Jain  11,569.53 
Dinesh Kumar Yadav  2,556.00 

b. Borrowing taken
Abhinav Bhardwaj  10,000.00 

c. Repayment of Borrowings
Abhinav Bhardwaj  10,000.00 

d. Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Electrospark Enclosuers Private Limited  4,133.10 

e. Reimbursement made
Abhinav Bhardwaj  6,460.97 

C.  Balances outstanding as on March 31, 2023 

Particulars Others

a. Remuneration Payable
Abhinav Bhardwaj  1,163.50 
Narendra Kumar Jain  695.63 
Dinesh Kumar Yadav  206.13 

b. Advance to employees
Narendra Kumar Jain  3,000.00 

c. Trade Payable
Abhinav Bhardwaj  460.91 
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D.  Balances outstanding as on March 31, 2022 

Particulars Others

a. Remuneration Payable
Abhinav Bhardwaj  985.00 
Narendra Kumar Jain  748.92 
Dinesh Kumar Yadav  206.13 

b. Advance to employees
Narendra Kumar Jain  3,000.02 

c. Trade Payable
Abhinav Bhardwaj  474.37 

32 In the opinion of the Management, Current Assets, Loans and Advances are of the value stated, if realized in the ordinary 
course of business except otherwise stated. The provision for all the known Liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the 
amount considered reasonably necessary.

33 The company has considered following disputed debts as bad debt during the year: -
S. No Name Amount
1 Vikas Hybrids & Electronics Limited  7,207.08 
2 Kortek Electronics India Limited  9,005.52 
3 SBJ Export & Mfg. Pvt. Ltd.  7,589.58 

34 The company has to recover a sum of Rs. 4742.83 from Rehaan International. The matter is pending for dishonor of 
cheques before District Court, Saket, Delhi for adjudication. The management is hopeful of recovering this pending 
amount.

35 Remuneration paid to the Directors included in Employees Benefits Expenses is Rs. 15,300.00 (Previous Year 12000.00).

36 All Trade Receivable are good and recoverable.

37 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company.

38 Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified by the company to conform with current year’s presentation, none 
of which it believes to be material, hence no additional disclosure is provided.

39 The company has contingent liability of letter of credit outstanding for Raw Material as on March 31. 2023 is Rs.  
6,75,590.78

40 The company has capitalised the borrowing cost as per Ind AS-23 i.e., Borrowing Cost during the financial year 2022-23 
is as below:
Particular Borrowing Cost Capitalized Avg Rate of Capitalization
Specific Borrowing  2,529.00 2.92%
General Borrowing  217.15 0.07%

41 The company has not declared any dividend during the year.

42 The company do not have any long- term contracts including derivative contract.

43 Additional information
Additional information is as certified by the Management and relied upon by the Auditors.

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

a Raw Materials, Stores & Spares Consumed: -
Raw Material
S. No. Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Qty. (Sq. Mts.) Amount Qty. (Sq. Mts.) Amount 
1 Copper clad Laminates 56008.43  1,009,421.30 57971.96  1,139,690.00 
2 Other Chemicals and consumables etc. -  800,481.70 -  783,776.42 
Total 56008.43  1,809,903.00 57971.96  1,923,466.42 

b Percentage of Material (Laminates) Consumed:
Description 2022-23 2021-22
Raw Material Percentage Amount Percentage Amount 
Imported  98.31  992,380.55  97.51  1,111,310.00 
Indigenous  1.69  17,040.75  2.49  28,380.00 
Total  100.00  1,009,421.30  100.00  1,139,690.00 

Description 2022-23 2021-22
Other Chemicals and consumables etc Percentage Amount Percentage Amount 
Imported  25.64  205,280.93 22.49  176,276.42 
Indigenous  74.36  595,200.77 77.51  607,500.00 
Total  100.00  800,481.70 100.00  783,776.42 

c CIF Value of Imports:
Description 2022-23 2021-22
Raw Material  1,160,198.36  1,333,960.00 
Stores, spares & chemicals  12,573.47  6,890.00 
Plant & Machinery Imported  2,460.00  10,560.00 

d Expenditure in Foreign Currency: NIL (P.Y. NIL)

e Sales 
Description 2022-23 2021-22

Qty. (Sq. Mts.) Amount Qty. (Sq. Mts.) Amount 
Printed Circuit Board (Sq. Mts.)  44,131.00  2,865,199.16 44270.86  2,853,534.53 

f Stock particulars of finished goods:
Description Closing Stock Opening Stock

Qty. (Sq. Mts.) Amount Qty. (Sq. Mts.) Amount 
PCB (Sq. Mts.)  3,070.56  124,064.47  2,037.64  53,482.52 

44 Additional Regulatory Information
a Loan & Advances given to promoters, Directors, KMP & other related parties

Repayable on Demand
Type of Borrower Amount of loan or advance 

in the nature of loan 
outstanding

Percentage to the total Loans 
and Advances in the nature 

of loans
2022-2023 2021-2022 2022-2023 2021-2022

Promoter - - - -
Director - - - -
KMP - - - -
Related Parties - - - -

b No proceedings have been initiated or is pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1948 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.
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c The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

d The Company has no transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 
560 of Companies Act, 1956.

e The Company has adequately registered the charge and there is no charge which has beyond the statutory period. 

f  No scheme of arrangement for the Company has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 
237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

g Details of discrepancy in utilisation of borrowings
Nature of 
the fund 
raised

Name of the Lender 31 March, 2023
Amount Purpose 

for which 
amount was 
sanctioned

Purpose for 
which amount 
was utilised

Remarks

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nature of 
the fund 
raised

Name of the Lender 31 March, 2022
Amount 
diverted

Purpose 
for which 

amount was 
sanctioned

Purpose for 
which amount 
was utilised

Remarks

Term Loan SBI Bank Nil Purchase 
of plant and 
Equipment

Payments 
for Plant and 
Equipment

-

h Details of borrowings obtained on the basis of security of current assets

Quarter Name of 
Bank

Particular          
of Securities 

Provided

Amount As per 
Books of Account

Amount as 
Reported in 
the quarterly 

return/ 
statement

Amount of 
Difference

Reason for Material 
Discrepancies

Jun-22 SBI Bank Stock 793,342.25 797,667.39 4325.14 The difference is mainly due 
to Ad hoc Valuation adopted, 
while submitting quarterly 
statements due to time 
constraints and non-inclusion 
of certain items of inventory 
in quarterly statements value 
to comply with terms & 
conditions prescribed by the 
bank in the sanction letter and 
valuation of inventory at net 
realisable value.  

Sep-22 SBI Bank Stock 753,428.64 774,231.54 20802.91
Dec-22 SBI Bank Stock 606,366.86 618,840.58 12473.72
Mar-23 SBI Bank Stock 589,302.35 616,984.55 27682.2

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated

Quarter Name of 
Bank

Particular          
of Securities 

Provided

Amount As per 
Books of Account

Amount as 
Reported in 
the quarterly 

return/ 
statement

Amount of 
Difference

Reason for Material 
Discrepancies

Jun-22 SBI Bank Trade Receivable 822,106.67 518,229.48 303,877.19 The difference is mainly due 
to exclusion of certain trade 
receivables not considered in 
quarterly statements to comply 
with terms & conditions 
prescribed by the bank in the 
sanction letter.

Sep-22 SBI Bank Trade Receivable 786,619.87 539,160.78 247,459.09
Dec-22 SBI Bank Trade Receivable 925,286.11 723,171.82 202,114.29
Mar-23 SBI Bank Trade Receivable 1,115,640.35 973,136.23 142,504.12

Quarter Name of 
Bank

Particular          
of Securities 

Provided

Amount As per 
Books of Account

Amount as 
Reported in 
the quarterly 

return/ 
statement

Amount of 
Difference

Reason for Material 
Discrepancies

Jun-21 SBI Bank Stock 482,150.40 403,831.07  78,319.33 The difference is mainly due 
to Ad hoc Valuation adopted, 
while submitting quarterly 
statements due to time 
constraints and non-inclusion 
of certain items of inventory in 
quarterly statements to comply 
with terms & conditions 
prescribed by the bank in the 
sanction letter.

Sep-21 SBI Bank Stock 637,932.07 547,225.74  90,706.33 
Dec-21 SBI Bank Stock 693,434.74 660,338.85  33,095.89 
Mar-22 SBI Bank Stock 534,620.19 544,716.47 (10,096.28)

Quarter Name of 
Bank

Particular          
of Securities 

Provided

Amount As per 
Books of Account

Amount as 
Reported in 
the quarterly 

return/ 
statement

Amount of 
Difference

Reason for Material 
Discrepancies

Jun-21 SBI Bank Trade Receivable 1,037,622.19 651,573.76 386,048.43 The difference is mainly due 
to exclusion of certain trade 
receivables not considered in 
quarterly statements to comply 
with terms & conditions 
prescribed by the bank in the 
sanction letter.

Sep-21 SBI Bank Trade Receivable 1,069,759.05 665,896.47 403,862.58
Dec-21 SBI Bank Trade Receivable 1,096,132.82 644,418.19 451,714.63
Mar-22 SBI Bank Trade Receivable 1,216,685.21 912,437.26 304,247.95

i (A) The Company has not advanced or loan or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) to any other person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding 
that the Intermediary shall 
i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
ii) provide any guarantee, security, or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

j  There is no transaction to be recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during 
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 and also there is no previously unrecorded income and 
related assets to be recorded in the books of account during the year.;

k  The company is not covered under section 135 of the Companies Act.

l The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
See accompanying notes are forming part of these standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration Number 007895N) Abhinav Bhardwaj        Anurag Gupta

             Director                Director
Vijay Kumar Bhardwaj     DIN: 06785065      DIN: 03629487
(Partner)
Membership Number 086426 Dinesh Kumar Yadav   Narender Kumar Jain
Place: New Delhi Company secretary        Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 16, 2023

Amit Lohia
     Chief Executive Officer

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in INR Hundred unless otherwise stated
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